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NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 20™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF
THE MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY, 15™ JULY
2019 AT 10:30 A.M. AT 11™ FLOOR, GATEWAY TOWER, DLF CITY, PHASE -

Il, GURUGRAM, HARYANA - 122002 TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING
BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement for
the financial year ended 315t March 2019 together with the Reports
of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Pushpa Bector
(DIN - 02917318), who reftires by rotation and being eligibie, offers
herself for re-appointment.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
DLF Promenade Limited

L

Date: 03.05.2019 Manoj Kumar Dua

Place: Gurugram Company Secretary
: Y
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NOTES:

1.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS
ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND
VOTE ON POLL INSTEAD OF HERSELF/HIMSELF IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE ENCLOSED PROXY FORM, IF
INTENDED TO BE USED SHOULD REACH AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE
OF THE COMPANY DULY COMPLETED, STAMPED AND SIGNED NOT

LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR THE
MEETING.

The details of Director seeking re-appointment, in terms of the
Companies Act, 2013 (including Secretarial Standard-2) is
annexed hereto and forms part of this Notice.

Relevant documents and statutory registers are open for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company at
Shopping Mall, Phase-l, DLF City, Gurugram - 122002 on all
working days up to the date of the AGM and shall also be
available for inspection at the AGM.

. Corporate  member intending fo send its authorized

representative to attend the meeting is requested to send a
certified copy of Board Resolution authorizing its representative
to attend and vote on its behalf at the meefting.

. Copy of the full Annual Report {2018-19) is being sent to all the

persons who are entitled to receive the same. Hard copy of the

Annual Report will be made available to debenture holders who
request for the same.

. The Annual Report is also available on the Company’s website

at the link http://dlfpromenade.com/investor.asp.

The facility for voting through polling paper in terms of Section
109 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder
shall be made available at the Annual General Meeting.

The Company has appointed Yogesh Kapoor & Associates,
Company Secretary in whole-time practice as Scrutinizer to
scrutinize the polling process in fair and fransparent manner. Mr.
Harsh Oberoi has given his consent for such appointment.

Route map of the venue of the Meeting (including prominent
land mark) is annexed.
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PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3)
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U74920HR1999PLC034138
Name of the Company: DLF Promenade Limited

Registered office: Shopping Mall, Phase-l, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana
- 122 002.

Name of the member (s):

Registered address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Id:

DP ID:

I/We, being the member(s) of ................... Shares of the above
named Company, hereby appoint

T.Name:...........oceovn. .
Address :
E-mail Id:
Signature ..o, . or failing him/her

Address:
E-mail 1d:
Signature:...cooooiiii , or failing him/her

Address:
E-mail Id:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on
my/our behalf at the 20 Annual General Meeting of the Company, to
be held on Monday, 15t July 2019 aot 10:30 AM. at
11t Floor, Gateway Tower, DLF City, Phase - Ill, Gurugram, Haryana -
122002 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions
as are indicated below:
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Resl. Resolutions For # | Against # | Abstained #
No.
1. Adoption of Audited Financial

Statement as at 31t March

2019 together with Reports of

Board of Directors and

Auditors thereon.
2. Re-appointment of

Ms. Pushpa Bector (DIN -

02917318), as Director, who

retires by rotation.
Signed this ....... day of........... 2019 Affix
. Revenue
Signature of Member Stamp of
Signature of Proxy holder(s) Appropriate

value

Notes:

1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly

completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the

Company at least forty-eight (48) hours before the
commencement of the meeting.

2) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3) A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not

exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than
10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share
capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a
single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy
for any other person or shareholder. '

# 4) This is only optional. Please put ‘v’ or ‘*x’ in the appropriate

column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave
‘For/or ‘Against’ column blank against the resolution, your Proxy
will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she deems
appropriate.

5) Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending

the meeting in person, if he/she so desire.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
20" Annual General Meeting - Monday, 15th July 2019

1. | Full Name and Registered
‘ Address of the Member
(in BLOCK LETTERS)

2. | Full Name of the
Proxy/Authorised
Representative

(in BLOCK LETTERS)

3. | Folio No./DP Id = Client |d*

4. | No. of Equity Shares held

I/We Being the Registered Shareholder/Proxy for the Registered
Shareholder** of the Company, hereby record my/our presence at
20t Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Monday,
15t July 2019 at 10:30 A.M. at 11" Floor, Gateway Tower, DLF City,

Phase - lll, Gurugram, Haryana - 122002 and at any adjournment(s)
thereof.

Member's / Proxy's Signature

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form
**Strike off whichever is not relevant
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Details of the Director seeking re-appointment at the Annual General

Meeting

Name of Director

Ms. Pushpa Bector

Age

53

Qualifications

Graduate from Oberoi Centre for Learning
and Development.

Experience

Having rich experience of over 22 years,
she has been a renowned name in the
retail and mall business domain. Prior to
joining the DLF group, she has also worked
in  various capacities  in  esteem
organisafions like all marquee properties of
Oberois’, Jubilant FoodWorks Limited and
Domino’s pizza.

Terms and Conditions:

Director liable to retire by rotation.

Details of remuneration
sought to be paid:

Remuneration- N.A.

Date of first appointment | 03.03.2017
on the Board

Shareholding in the | NIL
Company

Relationship with Other | NiL
Directors and other

KMP(S)

Number of Board | 5 (Five)

Meetings attended during
the year (2018-19)

Other Directorship(s)

DLF City Centre Limited; and
DLF Power & Services Limited

Committee Positions in
other Public Companies

Nil
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
To the Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 20 Annual Report on
the business and operations of the Company together with the
audited financial results for the financial year ended 315t March 2019.

Financial Results

(X in Lakh)
2018-19 2017-18
Total Income 15,428.93 14,847.14
Total Expenses 12,260.50 12,128.28
Profit before exceptional items and tax 3,168.43 2,718.86
Exceptional items - (3.704.48)
Profit/(Loss) before tax 3,168.43 (985.62)
Less: Tax Expenses
Current tax 689.52 134.39
Minimum alternate tax credit (583.81) -
Deferred tax 692.24 1,119.72
Net Profit/(Loss) 2,370.48 (2,239.73)
W

Review of Operations

During the FY 2018-19, total income has been increased by 3.92% from
< 14,847.14 lakh (previous year) to T 15,428.93 lakh due to increase in
rental & signage/promotional income and service income. The
expenses of the Company has been increased by 1.09% from
< 12,128.28 lakh (previous year) to ¥ 12,260.50 lakh due to increase in
expenses on electricity, heating, ventilation and air-conditioning
expenses by the Company. The Net Profit/(Loss) of the Company
stood at X 2,370.48 lakh against ¥ (2,239.73) lakh (previous year). The
basic & diluted EPS for the FY 2018-19 is ¥ 36.35/- as compared to
(X 34.34/-) in previous year.

About DLF Promenade - Delhi's Shopping Capital

"DLF Promenade”, located at the Nelson Mandela road in the heart of
Vasant Kunj, New Delhi, is a renowned mall for the trend-conscious
discerning customers of Delhi and NCR. By the virtue of its offerings, DLF
Promenade has earned the distinction of being the city's complete
shopping destination. Spread over 4.6 lakhs of square foot area, DLF
Promenade caters to customers who are looking for a quality
shopping experience coupled with a chic ambience.
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DLF Promenade not only boasts of some of the best brands in the
fashion retail industry, but it also offers some exclusive value additions.
With its strong global and ethnic fashion labels, Delhi's only 7-screen
PVR ICON Cinemas, a strong mix of F&B brands; the mall is becoming
a wonderful communication platform for reaching out to different
target markets with culturally, socially relevant propositions. Housed in
the mall are Kiddyland - the largest outdoor play area for kids, and The
Hub - a one-of-a-kind open-air lifestyle space comprising cafés and
dancing fountain on the likes of Bellagio.

With the rise of a millennial spender and a shift in their shopping habits,
DLF Promenade has adapted into creating a shopping destination
with a multi-purpose appeal. This is reflected by the launch of a strong
spectrum of 17 new brands such as Under Armour, Superdry Sports,
Tanishg, Bath & Body Works, Adidas Performance, Yum Yum Cha,
Masaba, Kalista and more.

The mall has constantly reinvented the whole aura of the place to
keep pace with the ever-changing tastes of consumers from all walks
of life. Several accessibility features for differently abled and elderly
further make the mall a truly inclusive place.

It has become the nerve centre for an all-around experience for
customers coming from various parts of the city and suburb.
Promenade brings the factor of novelty and innovation on the table
that attracts more customers and enables earning the label which is
modern and ground-breaking in its approach and reaches. From
supporting causes, to engaging passive decision makers in the most
infriguing ways; the mall has its own way of inviting every plausible
gentry info visiting the mall.

Future Qutlook

The future of retail is becoming increasingly exciting with experience
being rendered the greatest emphasis by various stakeholders. This
variety of experience will be the key inflection point for success of
malls, with food and beverages and entertainment facilities increasing
in importance. Innovative developers are introducing new
entertainment options in the malls and retailers are trying to merge

online experiences with offine one to enhance customer's
experience.

The Internet of Things will make shopping easier, cheaper, and more
convenient. Leveraging augmented redality for customers to engage
better will become a norm as shopping opportunities will soon be
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available everywhere, with options for purchasing products “on the
go”. The reverse is trend is also fast picking up, as clicks to bricks
phenomenon is being adopted by some of the biggest e-com players.

As a result, retail is being redefined for every stakeholder viz. retailers,
investors, developers and consumers, because of pace at which the
‘experience of retailing’ has been changing over the last few years.

Recent FDI retail policies have created an environment conducive to
retail business are steps in right directions. The new e-commerce

guidelines will further benefit brick and mortar retail and help them
retain customers.

Dividend
Your Board of Directors for the financial year under review, with a view
to conserve resources for future development and expansion have not

recommended any dividend on Equity Shares.

Reserves

During the financial year under review, the Company has transferred
% 2,370.47 lakh to Debenture Redemption Reserve towards redemption
of redeemable non-convertible debentures.

Material Changes and Commitment

There was no material changes and commitments, affecting the
financial position of the Company which have occurred between the
end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial
statement relates and the date of the report.

Changes in the nature of Business

There were no changes in the nature of business during the financial
year under review.

Share Capital Structure

During the financial year under review, there were no changes in the
Share capital of the Company.
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Commercial mortgage backed securities (CMBS)

3,750 secured, rated, listed, redeemable non-convertible debentures
of face value of ¥ 10 Lakhs each having coupon rate of 10.90% per
annum payable on monthly rests under commercial mortgage backed
securities structure aggregating to ¥ 375 Crores (Rupees Three Hundred
and Seventy-Five Crores Only), issued and allotted by the Company
continue to be listed with Bombay Stock Exchange.

CRISIL has re-affirmed its rating on CMBS to ‘CRISIL AA (SO)/Stable’ vide
its letter dated 6 March 2019 and ICRA has also re-affirmed its rating
on CMBS 1o ‘[ICRAJAA(SO)/Stable’ vide its lefter dated 22nd November
2018.

The Company vide its early redemption notice dated 18h April 2019
issued to Axis Trustee Services Limited, has exercised its right to redeem
all the aforesaid non-convertible debentures on 12t June 2019 in ferms

of Clause 2.5.1. (Early Redemption Date) of Debenture Trust Deed
dated 15" May 2014.

The members may kindly note that the management is in discussion
with various lenders to refinance the said loan and expect to meet ifs
obligation to Debenture Holders as it falls due on 12t June 2019.

Payment of Listing Fee

Annual listing fee for the Financial Year 2019-20 in connections with the
non-convertible debentures listed with Bombay Stock Exchange has
been paid by the Company.

Fixed Deposits

The Company has not accepted/renewed any public deposits during
the financial year under review.

Holding Company

DLF Cyber City Developers Limited and DLF Limited are the holding
Companies of your Company. Rajdhani Investments & Agencies
Private Limited is the ultimate holding Company of your Company.

Subsidiary/Associate Companies/Joint Venture

During the financial year under review, the Company does not have
any subsidiary/associate Companies/ joint ventures, therefore the
provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.
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Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo

The information on conservatfion of energy, technology absorption
and foreign exchange earnings and outgo as stipulated under Section
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given at Annexure-A hereto
and form part of this report.

Particulars of Employees

The Company has no employee whose particulars are required o be
given under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule & of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and any amendments made
thereunder from time to time.

Policy on Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal of Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace

Your Company has been following a policy framed by DLF Limited, the
holding Company (DLF), on Prohibifion, Prevention and Redressal of
Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace and matter connected
therewith or incidental thereto covering all the aspects as contained
under “The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prohibition,
Prevention and Redressal) Act, 2013". The Internal Complaints
Committee of DLF handle/ deal with the complaints pertaining to DLF

and its subsidiaries. During the period under review, no complaint was
received.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of
Directors of the Company confirms that-

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at
the end of the financial year and of the profit of the
Company for that period;
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(c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on
going concern basis;

(e) the directors have laid down internal financial controls to
be followed by the company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively; and

(f) the directors have devised proper systems fo ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and

that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

Secretarial Standards

During the FY under review, your Company has duly followed all
applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS$-2, relating to
‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’.

Number of Meetings of the Board

During the financial year under review, the Board met 5 (five) times i.e.
on 16" May, 31st July & 26M October 2018 and 29t January &
25t March 2019 as per the under noted attendance. The maximum
interval between any two meetings was in compliance with the

provisions of the Act. The requisite quorum was present at all the
meetings.

S.No. Name of the Members Position No. of meetings
Held Attended
during
tenure
1. Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla | Independent 5 4
Director -
2. Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg Independent 5 5
Director
3. Ms. Pushpa Bector Director 5 5
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4, Mr. Raj Kumar Jain ‘ Nominee 5 5
Director
5. Mr. R.P. Punjani Director 5 5

Audit Commitiee

The Audit Committee consists of the following members:

Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla, Chairman ]
Independent Director

Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg, Member
Independent Director

Ms. Pushpa Bector, Director Member

During the financial year 2018-19, five (5) meetings of the Audit
Committee was held on 16 May, 315t July & 26th October 2018 and
29t January & 25th March 2019 as per the under noted attendance.
The maximum interval between any two meetings was in compliance

with the provisions of the Act. The requisite quorum was present at all
the meetings.

S. Name of the Members Position No. of meetings
No.
Held | Altended
during
tenure
1. | Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla Independent 5 -4
Director
2. | Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg Independent 5 5
Director
3. | Ms. Pushpa Bector Director 5 5

The Board had accepted all recommendations of the Audit
Committee.

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism policy namely

“DLF Promenade Limited - Vigil Mechanism” under the supervision of
the Audit committee.

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors had
made modification in the existing Vigil Mechanism Policy of the
Company in order fo align the existing “Vigil Mechanism Policy” of the
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Company with the "Whistle Blower Policy” of DLF Limited, the holding

Company and to expand its scope to include Directors/ employees/
customers/ vendors, if any.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

The NRC consists of the following members:

Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla, Independent Director Chairman
Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg, Independent Director Member
Ms. Pushpa Bector, Director Member

The broad terms of reference are as under: -

1.

2.

To determine Remuneration Policy of the Company;

To recommend fo the Board the remuneration, whether by way
of salary, perquisites, sitting fees, commission, stock options,
sweat equity or in a combination thereof or otherwise, payable
to the Managing Director(s), Whole-time Director(s) and other

Directors, their relatives engaged in the employment of the
Company;

To recommend 1o the Board the remuneration, whether by way
of salary, perquisites, commission, retainership fee or otherwise,
payable to Directors for discharging the professional or other
services otherwise than in the capacity of Director;

To frame policies and compensation including salaries,
incentives, bonuses, promotion, benefits, stock options and
performance targets for executives of the Company;

Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive
aftributes and independence of a Director and recommend to
the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the Directors,
key managerial personnel and other employees;

The Committee while formulating the policy, shall ensure that:

(a)the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of the
quality required to run the Company successfully;

(b)relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and
meets appropriate performance benchmarks;
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(c)remuneration to Directors, key managerial personnel and
senior management involves a balance between fixed and
incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance

objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and
its goals.

Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Board, its Committees
and individual Directors including Independent Directors;

Devising a policy on Board diversity; and

ldentifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and
who may be appointed in senior management in accordance
with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their
appointment and removal.

During the financial year 2018-19, one meeting of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee was held on 16t May 2018, the attendance
of which is as under and requisite quorum was present in the meeting:-

S. Name of the Members Position No. of meetings
No.
Held | Aitended
during
tenure
1. | Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla Independent 1 -
Director
2. | Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg Independent ] 1
Director
3. | Ms. Pushpa Bector Director | |

A copy of “Nomination and Remuneration Policy” shail remain open
for inspection by the members during business hours on any working
day at the Registered Office of the Company and has been disclosed
on Company’s website at the link hitp://difpromenade.com/investor-
policies.asp. '

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee)

The CSR Committee consists of the following members:

Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla, Independent Director Chairman
Ms. Pushpa Bector, Director Member
Mr. R.P. Punjani, Director Member
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During the financial year 2018-19, three meetings of the Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee were held on 16th May & 31st July 2018
and 25t March 2019 the attendance of which is as under and requisite
quorum was present in all the meetings:-

S.No. Name of the Position No. of meetings ]
Members
Held during | Attended
tenure
1. | Mr. Surinder Singh Independent 3 2
Chawla Director
2. | Ms. Pushpa Bector Director 3 3
3. | Mr. R.P. Punjani Director 3 3

The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the CSR Committee
had amended the CSR policy of the Company for better governance
perspective and to ensure best utilization of amount given to the
nodal agency appointed for CSR expenditure and also to have better
monitoring  mechanism  for  implementation of the CSR
projects/programs/activities.

During the financial year underreview, the Company has made
significant investments in community welfare initiatives for the
underprivileged through healthcare and environment through Shree
Mahavir Ji Charitable Trust and Lal Chand Public Charitable Trust. The
Company spent the entire sum of ¥ 34.30 lakhs as entitled towards CSR
activities/ projects/ programs for the FY 2018-19 in terms of Section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VIl and the rules
made thereunder (“the Act”).

A copy of “Corporate Social Responsibility Policy” shall remain open
for inspection by the members during business hours on any working
day at the registered office of the Company and has been disclosed
on Company’s website at the link http://dlifpromenade.com/investor-

policies.asp. The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed as
Annexure-B.

Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the rules made thereunder, S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
[B01003E/E300005], Chartered Accountants were appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five consecutive years
from the conclusion of 18 Annual General Meeting (YAGM”) till the
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conclusion of 23d AGM vide shareholders resolution dated
28t September 2017.

Auditors’ Report

There has been no quadlification, reservation or adverse remarks or
disclaimer in the Auditors’ Report on the financials of the Company.
The observations of the Auditors in their report are self-explanatory and

therefore, in the opinion of the Directors, do not call for further
comments.

Cost Records

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, your

Company was not required to maintain cost records for the
FY 2018-19.

Secretarial Audit

The Board had appointed A.S. & Associates, Company Secretaries in
Practice, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2018-19.
The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 315t March
2019, is annexed as Annexure-C. The said report does not confain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remarks.

Directors & Key Managerial Personnel

- Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Pushpa
Bector, Director retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. The
Board recommends her re-appointment.

The independent Directors have submitted declarations that they

meet the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

During the financial year no non-executive Directors of the Company
had pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company, other
than the sitting fees paid to independent directors and nominee
director and reimbursement of expenses incurred by non-executive
Directors for the purpose of attending meetings of the Company.
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Mr. Siddhartha Natu, Manager, Mr. Gurpreet Singh, Chief Financial
Officer and Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua, Company Secretary are the Key
Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of the Company in terms of the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under Section
164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Extract of the Annual Return

The extract of the Annual Return in Form No. MGT-9 as provided under
Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed as Annexure-D.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments

Particulars of loans covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act,

2013, form part of the notes to the financial stafement provided in this
Annual Report.

During the financial year under review, the Company has not given
any loans or had provided guarantees or made any investment as

covered Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder.

Transactions with Related parties

The Company has adequate procedures for the purpose of
idenftification and monitoring of related party(ies) and related party
transactions. None of the transactions with related parties falls under
the scope of Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).
Information on transactions with related parties pursuant to Section
134(3)(h) and 136(1) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended are available for inspection at
the registered office of the Company.

The Company's policy for related party transactions regulates the
transactions between the Company and its related parties. The policy
infends to ensure that proper reporting; approval and disclosure
processes are in place for all fransactions between the Company and
related parties. For details on related party fransactions, members may
refer to the notes to the financial statement.
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Board Evaluation

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, pursuant fo the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder
(“the Act”), formulated the Policy on Board evaluation, evaluation of
Board Committees’ functioning and individual Director evaluation. In
keeping with DLF's belief that it is the collective effectiveness of the
Board that impacts Company performance, the primary evaluation
platform is that of collective performance of the Board as a whole.
Board performance is assessed against the role and responsibilities of
the Board as provided in the Act. The parameters for Board
performance evaluation have been derived from the Board's core
role of trusteeship to protect and enhance shareholders value as well
as to fulfil expectations of other stakeholders through strategic
supervision of the Company. Evaluation of functioning of Board
Committees is based on discussions amongst Committee members
and shared by the respective Committee Chairman. Individual
Directors are evaluated in the context of the role played by each
Director as a member of the Board at its meetings, in assisting the
Board in realizing its role of strategic supervision of the functioning of
the Company in pursuit of its purpose and goals.

Based on the above, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
has carried out the annual performance evaluation of the Board,
Committees of the Board and individual Directors including
Independent Directors.

The Independent Directors of the Board also reviewed the

performance of the non-Independent Directors pursuant to Schedule
IV of the Act.

Risk Management

The Audit Committee has oversight in the areas of financial risks and
control and is also responsible to frame, implement and monitor the
risk management plan and ensuring its effectiveness. Risks are
identified through a consistently applied methodology. The Company
has put in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate
various risks o key business objectives.

The Audit Committee also seek independent assurance on specific
risks from internal audit or other assurance reviews.
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Internal Financial Controls and Systems

Internal financial controls are integral part of the risk management
process addressing amongst others financial and non-financial risks.
The internal financial controls have been documented and
augmented in the day to day business processes. Assurance on the
effectiveness of internal financial controls is obtained through
management reviews, self assessment, continuous monitoring by
functional experts as well as testing by the Statutory/internal Auditor
during the course of their audits. Significant audit observations and
follow up actions thereon are reported to the audit committee.

The Company's internal control system is commensurate with the
nature, size and complexities of operations. '

Significant and material orders passed by regulators or courts

There are no significant material orders passed by the regulators/
courts which would impact the going concern status of the Company
and ifs future operations.

Accolades

During the financial year under review, "DLF Promenade” has been
conferred with the following award:

o “Sword of Honour 2018" from British Safety Council for
excellence in Occupational Health & Safety.

Detdils of Debenture Trustee

The details of Debenture Trustees are as under:

Axis Trustee Service Limited

2nd Floor, E, Axis House, Bombay Dyeing Mills Compound,
Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai — 400 025.

Tel: 022-24255216; Fax: 022-24254200

E-mail ID: debenturetrustee@axistrustee.com
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
- DLF Promenade Limited
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AV




DLF PROMENADE LIMITED

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-l, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana-122 002
(CIN - U74920HR1999PLC034138) Website: www.dlfpromenade.com

Tel No.: 0124-4778121, Email: difpromenade@dlf.in

ANNEXURE - A’

Particulars required to be disclosed under Section 134(3}(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014:

A

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

(i)

The steps taken or impact on | Optimization of HVAC equipment’s
conservation of energy; operation in high side as well as low
side. Replacement of all common
area light fixtures with LED lights.

(it

alternate sources of energy; | open access.

The steps taken by the|Energy derived from 24KW rooftop
company for utilizing | Solar panels & Green Energy from

(il

equipments; LED lights.

The capital investment on % 14 Lakhs spent on replacement of
energy conservation all common area light fixtures with

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

(7. \,.w/

The efforts made towards technology absorption;

NIL

The benefits derived like product improvement,
cost reduction, product development or import
substitution;

NIL

In case of imported technology (imported
during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year)-

(a)the details of technology imported;

(b)the year of import;

(c)whether the technology been fully
absorbed;

(d)if not fully absorbed, areas where

absorption has not taken place, and the
reasons thereof; and

NIL

(iv)

The expenditure incurred on Research and

| Development.

NIL
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C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

(Amount in )
2018-19 2017-18
(i) The Foreign Exchange earned in Nil Nil

terms of actual inflows during
the financial year; and

(ii) The Foreign Exchange outgo 74,198/- 1,21,040/-
during the financial year in| '
terms of actual outflows.

o
&

@

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
DLF Promenade Limited

— @?\/\/

Date: 03.05.2019 Pyshpa Bector R.P Punjani
Place: Gurugram Director Director
DIN:02917318 DIN: 00050?4‘3/

o
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Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

Particulars

Remarks

A brief outline of the company's CSR policy,
including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference
to the web-link to the CSR policy and
projects or Programs

formulated

DLF Promenade Limited

its CSR Activities
infegrate economic, environmental
and social objectives with its
operations and growth for common
good as per Schedule VIl of the
Companies Act, 2013 and any

amendments or modifications made
thereto.

has
to

Weblink to the CSR Policy is :
http://difpromenade.com/investor-
policies.asp

Copy of the CSR Policy is available for
inspection by the members during
business hours on any working day at
the registered office of the company
and will also be available at the
meeting.

The Composition of the CSR Commiittee

1) Mr.  Surinder
(Chairman)

Singh  Chawla

2) Ms. Pushpa Bector (Member)

3) Mr. R.P. anjani (Member)

3

Average net profit of the company for last
three financial years

Rs. 17.15 Crores

4

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (tlwo percent of
the amount as in item 3 above) '

Rs. 0.34 Crores

5

Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

a) Total amount to be spent for the
financial year:

b) Amount unspent , if any:

¢) Manner in which the amount spent

during the financial year is detailed
below:

Rs. 0.34 Crores

Nil
As detailed below:

o b Ny
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(X in Lakh)
DETAILS OF EXPENDITURE
Projects or Amo‘ Amount spent
programs unt on the projects
{1)Llocal or programs
area or other Outla . Cu'm ulat Amount Reasons
Sectorin (2)Specify Y Direct ve N spent: for not
sI Program | CSR project ) {Bud | expen Expendit . j -
. L which the the state : Direct or spending
N me or activity . 4. . get) diture ure up
o] . I project is and district . through the
Name identified proje on to the : .
covered where ot or rojec Overh reportin implementi | allotted
projects or proj eads R ng agency budget
progr ts or g period
programs ams | progra
was wise | mmes
undertaken
Running
Primary Lal Chand Refer
Hedlthc Health . Public Note 1
1 are Cenires 8. | Healthcare | Noida (U.P.) | 7.98 | 67 0.34 7.04 Charitable
Mobile Trust
Clinics
Environ
Environ ment Greater
9 merjt preservatio | Environ Kailash -1, 2632 | 0.00 0.00 0.00 Mahavir Ji Refer
Sustaina nthrough | ment New Delhi Trust Note 2
bility adoption of
two parks
Total 34.30 6.70 0.34 #7.04

# Total unspent amount of T 27.26 lakhs at the end of FY 2018-19 lying unspent with Lal Chand Public
Charitable Trust and Mahavir Ji Trust which shall be incurred by them during the FY 2019-20 and shall
be monitored by the CSR Committee in terms of CSR Policy of the Company.

CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance
with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

Note 1

The expenditure on medicine purchased was lower than the budget. Further, as the project was to

run only filt 30™ June 2018, thus there was no necessity of keeping reserve medicine stock resulting in
lower quantity of purchase of medicine.

Note 2

The Project namely “Preservation of environment through adoption of two parks at Greater Kailash -1,
New Delhi" has got delayed on the account of delay in execution of documents with the Local Body
i.e. South Delhi Municipal Corporatfion (SDMC). The Trustees of Mahavir Ji Trust had duly applied for
adoption of parks on which the Chairman of Standing Committee, SDMC has directed the
Horticulture Department fo complete the necessary documentation i.e. MOU etc. It is expected that
execution of all new MOU's with third parties shall be resumed by the end of May 2019.

) |
A ~/
S s

Siddhartha Natu
Manager

Director
DIN: 02917318

DIN: 00102064

Fgh Chawis”.
Chairman, m
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31/03/2019%
{Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Compavies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members, i

M/s DLE Promenade Limited
{CIN:U74920HR1999P1LC0O34138)

Shopping Mall, Phase- 1,DLF City, Gurugram,
Haryana-122002,

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by DLF Promenade Limited (hereinafter called the
Company)}. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the DLF Promenade Limited’s hooks, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the

financial year ended on March 31, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and

also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2019 according to the
provisions of:

{i) The Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

{ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation} Act, 1956 {'SCRA’} and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

{iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and

External Commercial Borrowings; o
(v The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange

Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of india {Substantial Acguisition of Sharas and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable)

{h) The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Probibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; (Not Applicable)

{c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable)

DLF Promenade Limited -31.03.20198

Aaney e ~C.




{d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Share Based Employee Benefit)
Regulation, 2014; (Not Applicable)

{e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008,

{f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Registrars to an lssue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client;

(g} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2003; {Not Applicable)

{h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {(Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018; and {(Not Applicable)

(1) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure

Reqguirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended;

{(vi} The Company has constructed a shopping mall-cum entertainment complex named DLF
Promenade at Vasant Kunj, New Delhi and further leased out to various tenants. As informed by
the managernent, there is no sector specific law applicable to the Company;

t have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i} Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSH).
(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE);

There was no activity to be reported under the SCRA, Depositories Act, FEMA and the rules made
thereunder. Only debt securities of the Company are listed on BSE as such, provisions of SEB
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 are not applicable per se. Further as confirmed by
the management,no such listed securities of the Company were held and / or traded by any insider
of the Company during the period under review,

During the period under review the Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc, mentioned above.

| further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance
of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Women Director as

applicable. During the period under review, no changes took place in the compaosition of the Board
of Directors.

Adeaquate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining

further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

Board decisiors are carried out with unanimous consent and therefore, no dissenting views were

required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes.
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{ further report that there are adequate systerns and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable faws,
-

’

rules, reguiations and guidelines. '

'

Hurther report that during the audit period, there were ne instances of:

{i) Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares / debentures/sweat equity, etc.,

{if) Redemption / buy-back of securities,

(i) Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to Section 180 of the Companies
Act, 2013,

{iv) Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc., and

{v) Foreign technical collaborations.

Place: New Delhi Signature: Wﬂ"

Date: 3° May 2019 For AS& Associites -

Company Secretaries
4 |

i
/
i
i
IS
f

DLF Promenade Limited -31.03,2018 %97

SR——




Awn e -0

FORM NO. MGT ¢

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on 31.03.2019

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U74920HR1999PLC034138

Registration Date

02.02.1999

Name of the Company

DLF PROMENADE LIMITED

iv Category/Sub-category of the Public Company, Limited by Shares
Company
v Address of the Registered office Shopping Mall, Phase - 1, DLF City, Gurugram - 122 002,
& contact details Haryana.
Tel No.: 0124-4778121,
Contact Details : 0124-4778101/8121
E- mail ID: punjani-rp@dif.in
vi Whether listed company Yes (Debentures are listed with BSE)
vii Name, Address & contact details of the |For Debentures:
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot no. 31832, Gachibowili,
Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Hyderabad - 500032
Contact Person- Mr. Varghese P.A.: 040-67162222.
For Equity :
Alankit Assignments Limited
'Alankit House' 2E/21, Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi -
110055.
Contact Person- Mr. J.K. Singla : 011-42541960
i PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be
stated
SL No Name & Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
products/services Product /service of the company
1 Real Estate Activities 681- Real Estate activities 100
with own or lease
properties /
n PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Si No. NAME & ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % OF APPLICABLE
SUBSIDIARY/ VOTING SECTION
ASSOCIATE RIGHTS
1 DLF Cyber City Developers Limited
Regd. office: U45201HR2006PLC036074 Holdi 100.00% Sec 2(46
10th Floor, Gateway Tower, DLF City, olding 0% | Sec2(48)
Phase-ill, Gurugram, Haryana -122002
2 DLF Limited, Regd. Office: Shopping L70101HR1963PLC002484 Holding - Sec 2(46)
Mall, 3rd Floor, Arjun Marg, Phase 1, DLF
City, Gurugram, Haryana -122002.
3 Rajdhani Investments & Agencies U65993GJ1972PTC097502 Ultimate Holding - Sec 2(46)

Private Limited, Regd. Office: MC Shah
House, 1/B, FF, Avantika Society,
Nr.Naranpura Railway Crossing,
Naranpura, Ahmedabad-380013.
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % of total Equity)
(i) Category - wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

% change
during the

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total % of Total
Shares

vear

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a} Individual/HUF

b} Central Govt.

c)State Govi{s)

d) Bodies Corporates

65,21,500

65,21,500

65.21,500

e) Bank/Ft

65,21,500 100.00

f) Any other

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1)

65,21,500

65.21,500

65,21,500

65,21,500 100.00

(2) Forelgn

a) NRI- Individuals

b) Other Individuals

c) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/F|

e} Any other

SUB TOTAL (A) (2)

Total Shareholding of
Promoter

(A)= (A)1)+(A)(2)

65,21,500

65,21,500

100.00

65,21,500

f

65,21,500 100.00

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks/Fl

C) Centrat govt

d) State Govt(s)

e} Venture Capital Fund

f} Insurance Companies

g) Flis

h} Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i} Others {(specify)

SUB TOTAL (B)(1):

(2) Non Institutions

a) Bodies Corporates

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b} Individuals

i} Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
upto Rs.1 lakh

i} Individuals
shareholders holding
nominal share capitat in
excess of Rs. 1 lakh

c} Others (specily)

SUB TOTAL (B)(2):

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

0

Grand Total (A+B+C)

65,21,500

65,21,500

100

65,21,500

65,21,500 100




{ii) SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS

St
No.

Shareholders Name

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Shareholding at the
end of the year

No of shares % of total % of shares | No of shares | % of total % of shares Yo
shares pledged/ shares pledged/ change
of the encumbered of the encumbered | in share
company | to total shares company | to total shares | holding
during
the vear |
DLF Cyber City
1 Developers Limited
{along with its six
nominees} 65,21,500 100.00 100.00 65,21,500 100.00 100.00 -
Total 65,21,500 100.00 100.00 65,21,500 100.00 100.00 -

(iif) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING ( SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)

Sl Share holding at the Cumulative Share holding
No. beginning of the Year during the year
No. of Shares % of total No of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
] —
Al the beginning of the 65.21,500 10000 521,500 100.00
year
Date wise
increase/decrease in
Promoters Share holding
during the year
specifying the reasons
for increase/decrease
(e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus
/sweat equity etc)
2 |Atthe end of the year - - 65,21,500 100.00

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)

Sl Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No beginning of the year during the year
For Each of the Top 10 No.of shares % of total No of shares % of total
Shareholders shares of the shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the
1 year NiL NIL NiL NIL
Date wise
increase/decrease in
Share holding during the
:/ee;rosr;‘aselerfylng fhe NIL NiL NIL NiL
increase/decrease {e.9.
allotment/ transfer/
bonus/ sweat equity
ete.)
2 |Atthe end of the year NiL NIL NIL NIL

{v) Shareholding of Directors

and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. No Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
For Each of the Directors | No.of shares % of total No of shares % of total
& KMP shares of the shares of the
company company
1 I
At the beginning of the Nil Nil Nil Nt
year
Date wise
increase/decrease in
Share holding during the
year  specifying the INif Nil Nit Nit
reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
aliotment/
fransfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc.)
2 |Atthe end of the year Nil Nit Nil Nil




V. INDEBTEDNESS

(Amount in %)

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtness at the beginning of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount 3.75.00,00,000 65,66,00,001 4,40,66,00,001
ii} Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due 1,34,38,358 7.69.44,735 9,03,83,093
Total (i+ii+iii) 3,76,34,38,358 73,35,44,736 4,49,69,83,094
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
Addition 5,18,87.499 5,18.87,499
Reduction {46,07,50,138) -46,07,50,138
Net Change (40,88,62,638) -40,88,62,638
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount 3,75,00,00,000 27,43,00,000 4,02,43,00,000
ii} Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due 1,34,38,358 5,03,82,098 6,38,20,456
P ‘v\)'
Total (i-+ii+iii) 3,76,34,38,358 32,46,82,098 4,08,81,20,454 (W v
®
\ REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager : NIL

SLNo

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of the MD/WTD/Manager

Total
Amount

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17{1) of the Income Tax. 1961.

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the
Income tax Act, 1961

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

2 Stock option -
Sweat Equity -
4 Commission -
as% of profit

- others, specify

w

5 Others, please specify - B B B
Total (A) R

Ceiling as per the Act - - - R




SI.No

Remuneration to other directors:

Particulars of Remuneration

(Amount in

Name of the Direclors

Total ™
Amount

dependen! Divkolor

Mr. Santosh
Kumar Garg

M, Surinder Singh

Chawla

(a) Fee for attending board/
meetings

commitiee

2,20,000

2,00,000

4,20,000

{b) Commission

(c ) Others, please specily|

Total (1)

2,20,000

2,00,000

4.20,000

Other Non Executive Directors

Mi. Raj Kumar
Jain {Nominee
Director)

() Tee for attending
board /commitiee meetings

1,00,000

{b) Commission

(€} Olhers, pleuse specily.

Total (2)

1,00,000

Total (B)=(1+2)

5,20,000

Tolal Managerlal Remunerafion

Overall Ceiling as per the Act.

REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD: NiL

Sk No.

Parliculars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

Gross Salary

CEO

Company
Secrelary

CFO

Total

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17{1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

(b} Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the
income Tax Act, 1961

(c } Profits in lieu of salary under section
17{3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
as% of profit
others, specify

Others, please specify

Total




Vil PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Section of the Brief Details of Authority Appeal made if any
Companies Description Penalty/ (RD/NCLT/Court) {give details)
Act Punishment/

Compounding

fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nit Nil Nl Nil Nil

Date: 03.05.2019
Place: Gurugram

Bector
Dlkrector
DIN- 02917318

Pus

For and on the behalf of Board of Directors

DLF Promenade Limited

0N N

A
s~

Director
DIN-00050645
7\ »
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Tel : +91 124 681 6000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of DLF Promenade Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of DLF Promenade Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive
Incore, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
staternents, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial
statemnents give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2019, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2019. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have
fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS financial statements section
of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed
to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying Ind AS financial statements.

S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identily No. AAB-4294
Regd Office : 22, Camac Street, Block B', 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

1. Related Party Transactions (as described in note 40 of the Ind AS financial statements)

The Company has undertaken a number of transactions
with its related parties in the normal course of business.
These transactions include Rental Income, Service
Income, Interest Expense, Electricity/ HVAC Expenses,
Facility & Repair and Maintenance Expenses, Recovery
of Property tax, Business Support Services Expenses,
Advertisement Expenses, Bank Guarantee Charges and
CSR Expenses.

We identified the said related party transactions and its
disclosure as set out in respective notes to the financial
statements as a key audit matter due to the significance of
transactions with related parties during the year ended
March 31, 2019.

As part of our audit procedures, our procedures included the |
following:

We have obtained and read the Company’s policies,
processes and procedures in respect of identifying related
parties; approval and recording of related party
transactions including how management determines all
transactions/ balances with related parties to be at arm’s
length and entered into in the normal course of business
and disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements.

We tested, on a sample basis, related party transactions
with the underlying contracts and other documents and for
authorization and approval for such transactions.

We read minutes of shareholder meetings, board meetings
and minutes of meetings of those charged with governance
in connection with transaction with related parties effected
during the year.

We have agreed the amounts disclosed to underlying
documentation and relevant agreements, on a sample basis.
We have evaluated the disclosures in the financial
statements through reading/ testing of statutory
information, books and records and other documents
obtained during the course of our audit.

2. Ac_counting for lease rental income (as described in

note 2(c) & note 20 of the Ind AS financial siatements)

Lease Rental Income amounted to INR 10,338.04 lacs for
the year ended March 31, 2019. Lease rental income is
recognized net of discount, in accordance with the terms
of lease agreements with the tenants on the basis of
Revenue Share or Minimum Guaranteed Rentals,
whichever is higher. There are a few lease arrangements
where the revenue recognition is based on purely Revenue
Share or Fixed Rentals as per the respective lease
agreements. Thete is an inherent risk around the accuracy
of the revenue recorded due to manual calculation of lease
rental income from Revenue Share which forms
significant part of the revenue.

We identified the same as a key audit matter because
there is an inherent risk around the accuracy of the
revenue recorded and impact of the terms of lease
agreements to the revenue recognition.

As part of our audit procedures, our procedures included the |
following;:

Our audit procedures included reading and assessing the
Company revenue recognition accounting policies and
assessing compliance with the policies in terms of IND AS
17 Leases.

We performed tests of details, on a sample basis. We read
the terms contained in the contracts entered into with the
tenants to assess whether lease rental income recorded is
as per the contract terms and also to identify any non-
standard lease clauses and to assess the rental income
accounting.

Regarding lease rental income from Revenue Share, we
agreed the underlying working to the data of monthly Store
Sales provided by the tenants, on sample basis.

We matched the data used in the revenue recognition to the
approved lease agreements with the tenants on sample
basis.
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_Keﬁudit—matters (Hovﬁur audit addressed the key audit matter

3. Assessing the carrying value of Investment property (as described in note 2(f) & note 4 of the Ind AS financial
statements)

Asat March 31, 2019, the carrying value of the Investment | Our procedures in assessing the management’s judgement for
Property (primarily a retail mall) is INR 51,640.68 lacs | the impairment assessment included, among others, the

which is located in Vasant Kunj, Delhi. following:

- We obtained and read the valuation report from an expert
Further, the carrying value of Investment property is valuer used by the management for determining the fair
assessed by the management, as at year end, to identity value (‘recoverable amount’) of the investment property.
whether there is an indication that an asset may be | - We considered the independence, competence and
impaired. objectivity of the management expert involved in

determination of valuation.

We considered the valuation of Investment Property akey | — We assessed the Company’s valuation methodology
audit matter given the significant estimates and judgment applied and compared key property related data used as
involved in impairment assessment. input by the valuer with the books of accounts.

— We compared the fair value as mentioned in the valuation
report to the carrying value of the Investment property.

— Made inquiries with management to understand key drivers
of the cash flow forecasts like discount rates, capitalization
rates, expected growth rates and terminal growth rates used
and assessed the impact of sensitivity on key drivers on the
fair valuation.

- We also assessed the disclosure on the Investment
properties in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Directors Report, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
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policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Charged with Governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2019 and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central Government of India

in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

N

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books ;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account ;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended;

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The Company has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration. Accordingly provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019;

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company with reference
to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this report;
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS financial
statements — Refer Note 34 to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses

iii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by

the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
iy, Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Membership Number: 501396

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 03, 2019
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement’ section of our
report of even date

Re

i)

iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

: DLF Promenade Limited (“the Company”)

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
fixed assets comprising of property plant and equipment and investment property, except for buildings capitalized under
Investment property, where fixed assets register is currently under updation to include its complete component wise
quantitative details and situations thereof.

b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were
identified on such verification.

¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immovable properties
included in investment property are held in the name of the company.

The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(ii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured
to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments, guarantees
and securities given in respect of which provision of Section 185 and Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable
and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not
applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records
under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the product/services of the Company.

vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including income-tax,

sales-tax, service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. The
provisions relating to employees’ state insurance, provident fund, duty of custom and duty of excise are not applicable
to the Company.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. The provisions relating to
employees’ state insurance, provident fund, duty of excise and duty of custom are not applicable to the Company.

(c) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of service tax on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to which the Forum where the dispute is
statute the dues (INR in amount relates pending
lacs)
Finance Act, | Service Tax 692.00 Financial Year 2007-08 | Custom, Excise and Service Tax
1994 to 2011-12 Appellate Tribunal, Delhi

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not

(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

defaulted in repayment of dues to debenture holders. The Company did not have any loans or borrowing in respect of
a dues to financial institutions, banks or to government during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised any money by
way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term loans hence, reporting under clause 3 (ix)
is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial statements
and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by the company
or no fraud on the company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

The company has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration. Accordingly reporting requirements under
clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet, the
company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year under review and hence reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the
Company and, not commented upon.
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(xv)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Fipp Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Amit/Gupta
Partner
Membership Number: 501396

Place: Gurugram
Date; May 03, 2019
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF DLF PROMENADE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DLF Promenade Limited (“the Company™) as of
March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.




S.R. BAtLiBo1 & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Ind AS Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LL.P
Chartered Accountants
?ﬂ Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Partner
Membership Number: 501396

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 03, 2019



DLF Promenade Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019
(All amounts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment i 1518 11.04
Investment property 2] 51,640.68 52,559 03
Financial assets
Other financial assers 5 6999 1,388 83
Deferred fax assets (net) fi 1,648.51 1,756.94
Non current tax assets (ne) ¥ 1,87529 1,561.52
Other non current assets 4 3.99 36.31
55,253.64 57,313.67
Current assets
Financial assets
‘I rade recevables 9 966.55 Hlg44
(Cash and cash equivalents 10 645.49 G787
Other bank balances 11 250.62 1047
Other financial assets 5 1,419.11 10,82
Othur current assets 8 123 45 22381
3,405.22 2,436.90
TOTAL ASSETS 58,658.86 59,750.57
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 12 65215 65215
Other equity 13 11,027.07 8,656.59
Total equity 11,679.22 9,308.74
Non-current liabilities
Financial habilites
Boriowings 14 36,878 25
Other financial liabilnes 15 2,449 83 1, Y68 V4
Deferred revenue 16 1,083 29 £1222
3,533.12 39,659.41
Curreut liabilities
Iinancial liabilities
Borrowings 14 2,743.00 6,566.00
I'rade payables 17
'l otal outstanding ducs of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1178
"L otal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 79739 1,225 32
Other financial liabilues 18 39,362 50 252059
Deferred revenue 16 31030 27012
Qther current habilines 19 221.55 200.39
43,446.52 10,782.42
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 58,658.86 59,750.57
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes forms an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of

Chartered Accountants DLF Promenade Limited

TR o' Regpseranon No s 30100317 12300005

RP.

Pughpa Bector unjani drtha Natu
Partner " | Jrecion Dicector e
Membership Number: 501396 DN - B 7304 DIN - 00050645
) : ]
Gurpreet Singh Manoj Kumar Dua
Chicf Financial Officer Company Sccretary

N No. A12025

Place: Gurugram Place : Gurugram
Date : May 3, 2019 Date : May 3, 2019
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DLF Promenade Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Revenue
Revenue
Revenuc from operations 20 15,208 18 1447842
Other income 21 220.75 36472
Total income 15,428.93 14,847.14
Expenses
Finance costs 22 5,399.40 5,616.74
Depreciation expense 23 1.17701 1,169 47
Other expenses 24 5,684.09 5,34207
Total expenses 12,260.50 12,128.28
Profit before exceptional items and tax 3,168.43 2,718.86
Exceprional wems (refer note 39) (3,704 48)
Profit/(loss) before tax 3,168.43 (985.62)
Tax expense: 25
Current tax 689.52 13439
Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement (583.81) -
Deferred tax 692.24 1,119.72
Profit/ (loss) after tax 2,370.48 (2,239.73)
Other comprehensive income 26
1) [tems that will not be reclassed to profit oc loss
Fair valuation gain/(loss) on investment in equity instrument (17 83)
il) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss E 4.13
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,370.48 (2,253.43)
Earings/ (loss) per equity share 27
Basic ®) 3635 (34.34)
Diluted ) 3635 (34.34)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes forms an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our reportt of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of

Chartered Accountants DLF Promenade Limited

[CAI Fim's Regastration No 301003E/ 13300005

gt

*‘p’&"&ﬁ’iﬁaﬂﬁ Pusifpa Bector
Partner Director Director
Membership Number: 501396 DIN - 02917318 DIN - 00050645
i
(—;_ﬂ A~
Gurpreet Singh Manoj Kumar Dua
Chiel Fwancial Offcer Company Secretary

N No. A12025

Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram
Date : May 3, 2019 Date : May 3, 2019
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DLF Pomenade Limited
Stat€™¢nt of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2019
(ANl 3Mourys in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

March 31, 2019

March 3, 2018

A Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit/(loss) before tax
Adjustment for :
Interest expense
Interest income
Amount forfeited on properties
Loss on sale of Tnvestment
Unclaimed balance wrtten back
Provision for doubtful debts
Dcepreciation expense
Financial liability measured at amortised cost (net)
Loss on pre settlement of financial liability
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustment for change in working capital:
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in tfinancial assets and other current assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in financial liabilines and other current liabihities
Cash flow from operations
Tncome tax paid (net of refunds)
Net cash flow from operating activities

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Interest received
(Investment in)/proceeds from other bank balances
(Investment in)/proceeds from fixed deposits (net)
Parchase of fixed asscrs (including capital work in progress & capital creditors)
Proceeds from sate of investments
Payment on sale of investment (refer note 39)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Tnterest pad
Receipt of loans from related parties
Repayment of loans to related parties
Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 10)

3,168.43 (985.62)
5,119.85 5,261.38
(169.00) (176.15)
(0.68) -
- 3,704.48
(0.40) (2.29)
16.69
1,177.01 1,169.47
(24.82) (48.90)
10.44 815
9,280.83 8,947.21
(152.51) 100.15
13267 (28.51)
(416.15) 26236
561.96 165.12
9,406.80 9,446.33
(1,003.29) 433,34
8,403.51 9,879.67
146.05 16893
459.55 (230.86)
(66.50) (67.01)
(222.54) (47.99)
- 94,53
(3,775.67)
316.56 (3,858.07)
(4,929.65) (5,:397.42)
- 3,800.00
(382300 (4,570.00)
(8,752.65) (6,167.42)
(32.58) (145 82)
678,07 823.89
645.49 678.07

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAAm's Regastranon Nos: 30100315/ 12300005

-...-—pcrﬁd'lﬁn Guptf

Pactner
Membership Number: 501396

Place: Gurugram
Date : May 03, 2019

Dircctor
DIN L2 TAH

N
G/ L
Gurpn:cl)'i:ngll

Chiel Vinancial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date : May 03,2019

€

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
DLF Promenade Limited

b

Dicector
DIN - 00050645

AR

Manoj Kumar Dua
Company Secretary
M No Al12025




DLF Promenade Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

A Equity share capital

Particulars

Balance as at
Apnil 1, 2017

Change during
the year

Balance as at
March 31, 2018

Change during the
year

Balance as at
March 31,2019

Liguity share capital

65215

652.15

65215

B Other equity

Particulars

Reserves and surplus

Other comprehensive
income - reserve

Securities premium Retained Debenture redemption FVTOCI reserve Total Other equity
eamings reserve

Balance as at April 1, 2017 14,323.75 (4,479.91) 1,052.48 13,70 10,910.02
Loss for the year (2,239.73) (2,239.73)
Change in athur comprehensive income* (13.70) (13.70)
Transfer (from)/to retained eamings
Balance as at March 31, 2018 14,323.75 (6,719.64) 1,052.48 = 8,656.59
Profit for the year 2,370 48 2,370 48
Change in other compreehensive income
Transfer (from)/to retained camings (refer note 42) (2,370 48) 2,370 48
Balance as at March 31, 2019 14,323.75 (6,719.64) 3,422.96 N 11,027.07

* refer notwe 26

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
1CAL Firm's Reggstration No: 3010035/ E300005

(g y f/ ~

M
"ﬂ'i:'?_k.l-l.li.l Gupta |
Parmer
Membership Number: 501396

Place: Gurugram
Date : May 3, 2019

Pudhpa Bector

Dircctor

l'}l‘!"_\' 02917318
(2
Ayl
Gurpreet Singh

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Datce : May 3, 2019

(P

For and on behalf of the board of directors of

ke
R.P Punjani

Dircctor
DIN - 00050645

Lk

Manoj Kumar Dua

Company Sccretary
M No A12025
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D LF Promenade Limited
N Otes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019
(Al inount in ¥ lacs, unless othenwvise stated)

Cotporate information
N ature of principal activities

DLF Promenade Limited (“the Company™) is a company domiciled in India and has its registered office in Gurgaon.
The Company was incorporated on February 02, 1999 under the provisions of Indian Companies Act. The Company
has constructed a Shopping mall-cum-entertainment complex named as DLF Promenade, at Vasant Kunj, consisting
of shops, commercial spaces, entertainment centre including but not limited to eateries, convention hall, indoor
games court, food court, restaurants etc. and basement for parking and other spaces etc. The Company is engaged
in the business of leasing and maintenance of shopping mall.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 are approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
May 03, 2019.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepated in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) spectfied
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’), read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time.

The financial statements have been prepared on going concetn basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for
certain financial assets and financial liabilities which are measured at fair values as explained in relevant accounting
policies. The financial statements have been presented in Indian Rupees () and all values have been rounded to the
neatest lacs, except when otherwise indicated. Fair valuations related to financial assets and financial liabilities are
categorised into level 1, level 2 and level 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable.

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-cusrent as pet the Company’s normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in Companies Act 2013. Defetred tax assets and labilities are classified as non-current
assets and non-current liabilities, as the case may be.

Revenue from contracts with customers and other stteams of revenue

Revenue comprises the consideration received or receivable for providing retail spaces on operating lease, rendering
of maintenance service and other income in the ordinary coutse of the Company’s activities. Revenue is presented,
net of taxes, rebates and discounts (if any).

Revenue is recognized as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customets is recognised when control of the goods or services ate transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. The Company has genera]ly concluded that it is the principal in its revenue atrangements
because it typically controls the goods ot services before transferring them to the customer.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, except for contingent rental income
which is recognised when it arises and where scheduled increase in rent compensates the lessor for expected
inflationary costs. Parking income and fit out rental income is recognised in statement of profit and loss on accrual
basis.

Revenue in respect of maintenance services is recognised over time, in accordance with the termns of the respective
contract.

iif) Advertisement/promotional income is recognised on accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the aereesacnt.

the services are rendered.
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DLF Promenade Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the yvear ended March 31, 2019
(All arnounr in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise statred)

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transfetred to the customer. If the
Company performs by transferting goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. The same has been
included under the head “unbilled receivables” in the financial statements.

Trade receivables

A recetvable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.. only the
¢ rep : pany's g : Lot , only

passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or setvices to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (ot an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before
the Company transfers goods or setvices to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made
or the payment is due (whichever is eatlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
petforms under the contract. The same has been included under the head “advance from customers” in the financial
statetnents.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalized during the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended in the petiod during which the active development 1s delayed due to,
other than temporary, intetruption. All other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss as

incutred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Properties plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comptises purchase price, borrowing
cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates ate deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Depreciation on propetty, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the
basis of useful lives (as set out below) prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013:

Asset category Estimated useful life (in years)
Furniture and fixtures 10
Office equipments 5

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.




DLF Promenade Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amount in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and
equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the provisions of previous GAAP and use that carrying
value as the deemed cost of property, plant and equipment.

f) Investment property

Recognition and initial measurement

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, or both. Investment properties
are measured initially at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its wotking condition for the intended use. Any
trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s cattying amount ot recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Capital work-in-progresy

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects under development and are
catried at cost. Cost includes related acquisition expenses, development/ construction costs, borrowing costs and
other direct expenditure.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and nsefil lives)
Depreciation on investment properties is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of useful lives
(as set out below) prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013:

Asset category Estimated useful life (in years)
Buildings 60
Plant and equipments 15

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

De-recognition

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period of
de-recognition.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its Investment property
recognised as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the provisions of previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the
deemed cost of investment property.

g) Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (‘INR’) which is also the functional and presentation
currency of the Company. -




DLF Promenade Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amount in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the exchange rate between
the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to functional currency
using the closing rate. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical
cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on such conversion and settlement at rates different from those at which they were
initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

h) Operating leases

)

Company as a lessee

Assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of risk and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Lease rental are charged to statement of profit and loss on straightline basis except
where scheduled increase in rent compensate the lessor for expected inflationary costs.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.
Rental income is recognized on straightline basis over the lease term except where scheduled increase in rent
compensates the Company with expected inflationary costs.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on internal/external factors, that
an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset,
If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the reduction
is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If, at the reporting date there
is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and
the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously recognized are accordingly reversed in
the statement of profit and loss.

Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except
for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value. Subsequent
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below.

Non-derivative financial assets

Subsequent measurement
i. Financial assets at amortised cost — the financial assets is measured at the amortised cost if both the

following conditions are met:

® The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

¢ Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method.

Regd. Ottice:

Shopping Mal.l,
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DLF Promenade Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amount in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

ii. Equity investments — All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading are generally classified as at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).
For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). The Company makes such
clection on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the
Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition
of the financial liabilities is also adjusted. These liabilities are classified as amortised cost.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substandally modified, such an exchange or modification 1s treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss for financial assets.

ECL is the weighted average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate, with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows,
the Company is required to consider —
e All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life
of the assets.
e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires
measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses
are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

. Cv'-'g.mn v
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DLF Promenade Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amount in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Other financial assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount
equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life
of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort,
that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to
have low credit risk at the balance sheet date

Taxes on Income.

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except the
ones recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted ot substantively
enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate

Defertred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets on unrealised
tax loss are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss will be utilised against future
taxable income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant
non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised
outside statement of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Unused tax credit (Minimum alternate tax (‘MAT) credit entitlement) is recognized as an asset only when and to the
extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the
year in which such credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to
the statement of profit and loss and shown as unused tax credit. The Company reviews the same at each balance
sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of unused tax credit to the extent it is not reasonably certain that
the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.
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Goods & Services Tax (GST)/ Service Tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST/Service Tax paid, except:

* When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which
case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as
applicable

* When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits with banks/corporations and short-term highly
liquid investments (original maturity less than 3 months) that are readily convertible into known amount of cash and
are subject to an insignificant tisk of change in value.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable

estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each

reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values,

whete the time value of money is material,

Contingent liability is disclosed for:

o Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company
or

o  DPresent obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when inflow of economic benefits is probable, related asset is

disclosed.
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events including a bonus
issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares.

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods.
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Sipnificant management judgements

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment
of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable
amount of the assets.

Classification of leases — The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The classification of
the leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment of several factors, including,
but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to purchase and estimated
certainty of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset’s economic life, proportion of present
value of minimum lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset.

Recoverability of advances/teceivables — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed
over expected life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding receivables and advances.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the
Company assesses the requitement of provisions against the outstanding warranties and guarantees. However the
actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Sionificant estimales

Useful lives of depreciable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/amortisable
assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to
technical and economic obsolescence that may change the udility of certain software, customer relationships, IT
equipment and other plant and equipment.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.

Valuation of investment property — Investment property is stated at cost. However, as per Ind AS 40 Investment
property there is a requirement to disclose fair value as at the balance sheet date. The Company engaged independent
valuation specialists to determine the fair value of its investment property as at reporting date.

The determination of the fair value of investment properties requires the use of estimates such as future cash flows
from the assets (such as lettings, future revenue streams, capital values of fixtures and fittings, any environmental
matters and the overall repair and condition of the property) and discount rates applicable to those assets. In addition,
development risks (such as construction and letting risk) are also taken into consideration when determining the fair
value of the properties under construction. These estimates are based on local market conditions existing at the
balance sheet date.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards
The Company applied Ind AS 115 for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption of

these new accounting standards are described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time during the current year, but do not have an
impact on the financial statements of the Company. The Company has not early adopted any standards or
amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.
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Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Ind AS 115 was issued on March 28, 2018 and supersedes Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts and Ind AS 18 Revenue
and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with its customers. Ind AS 115 establishes
a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers and requires that revenue be
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer.

Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and
circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies
the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.
In addition, the standard requires extensive disclosures.

The Company adopted Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective method of adoption. The application of the
Standard did not have any impact on the retained earnings as at April 1, 2018 or on the profit of the current year.

b) Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations

d)

The appendix clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or patt of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to
advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, then the entity must determine the date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance
consideration. This Interpretation does not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Amendments to Ind AS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under construction or
development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs when the
property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change in use.
A mere change in management’s intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.

These amendments do not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Amendments to Ind AS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits
against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the
circumstances in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.
Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial application of the amendments,
the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be recognised in opening retained earnings
(o in another component of equity, as appropriate), without allocating the change between opening retained earnings
and other components of equity. Entities applying this relief must disclose that fact.

These amendments do not have any impact on the Company as the Company has no deductible temporary
differences or assets that are in the scope of the amendments.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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3

(i)

o)

Property, plant and equipment

The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 are as follows:

Gross block

As at April 1, 2017
Additons

Disposals

As at March 31, 2018

Additons
Disposals
As at March 31, 2019

Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2017

Charge for the year
Disposals

As at March 31, 2018

Charge for the year
Disposals
As at March 31, 2019

Net block
As at March 31, 2018
As at March 31, 2019

Contractual obligations

Furniture and fixtures Office equipments Total
23.88 15.15 39.03
23.88 15.15 39.03

8.46 8.46
32.34 15.15 47.49
858 1515 2373
426 - 426
12.84 15.15 27.99
4.32 4.32
17.16 15.15 32.31
e —
11.04 - 11.04
15.18 - 15.18

The Company does not have any contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment as at March 31,2019 and March 31,2018

Capitalised borrowing cost
The Company has not capitalised any borrowing cost during the year ended March 31, 2019 and the year ended March 31, 2018.

Deemed cost of property, plunt and equipment (represents deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e. on April 1, 2015)

Description Gross block Accumulated depreciation |Net block

lFurniture and fixres 4163 1775 23.88
Otfice cquipments 2906 1391 15.15
Total 70.69 31.66 39.03

Regd. Office:

Shopping Mall,
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4 Investment property
Capitai Work

Freehold land Buildings Plant and equipments in Propress Total
Gross block
As at April 1, 2017 27,817.79 21,277.60 6,889.29 - 55,984.68
Additions 49 86 14.06 63.92
Disposals/adjustment - - -
As at March 31, 2018 27,817.79 21,277.60 6,939.15 14.06 56,048.60
Additions . 7.30 114.67 146.43 268.40
Disposals/adjustment - 3 (14.06) (14.06)
As at March 31, 2019 27,817.79 21,284.90 7,053.82 146.43 56,302.94
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2017 78710 1,537.26 2,324.36
Charge for the year 393.21 772.00 - 1,165.21
Disposals/adjustment - x -
As at March 31, 2018 1,180.31 2,309.26 3,489.57
Charge for the year 39321 779 48 117269
Disposals/adjustment - -
As at March 31, 2019 1,573.52 3,088.74 4,662.26
Net block
As at March 31, 2018 27,817.79 20,097.29 4,629.89 14.06 52,559.03
As at March 31, 2019 27,817.79 19,711.38 3,965.08 146.43 51,640.68

(1)  Contractual obligations

The Company docs not have any contractual commitments for the acquisition of investment property as at March 31,2019 and March 31, 2018 other than as mentioned in

note 37
(ii)  Capitalised borrowing cost
[le Company has not capitalised any borrowing cost during the year ended March 31, 2019 and Macch 31, 2018,
(iii) Investment property pledged as security
Refer note 14 for information on investment properties pledged as sccurity by the Company
(iv) Amount recognised in profit and loss for Investment property.
March 31, 2019 March i1, 2018
Renral income 10,338 .04 10,030.79
Dircet operating expenses that genccated rental income (776.28) (727.89)
Direct operating expenses that did not gencerated rental income
Profit from leasing of investment properties before depreciation 9,561.76 9,302.90
Depreciation expense (1,172.69) (1,165 21)
Profit from leasing of investment properties after depreciation 8,389.07 8,137.69
(v) Operating lease commitments- as a lessor
Certain investment property ace leased to tenants under long-term operating leases with rentals payable monthly. The Company has given building and related equipment on
lease. ‘The Company has entered into non- cancellable lease agreements with the tenants to whom it has leased out shops in Promenade Mall. The details of future minimum
lease rentals receivable under operating, lease for cach of the following periods as on March 31, 2019 and Macch 31, 2018 are mentioned below:
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Upto one year 5,342.81 4,677 87
After one year but not more than 5 years 3,577.91 2,239.12
More than five years 2,840.61 3,075.59
Total 11,761.33 9,992.58
(vi) Fair Value
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
IFair Value 1,17,640.00 1,14,040.00
Ihe fair value of investment property has been determined by external, independent property valuers, having appropriate ecognised professional qualification and recent
experience in the location and category of the property being valued, The Company obtans independent valuanons for its investment propertics at least annually and faic
value measurements are categorised as level 3 measurement in the fare value hierarchy
ollowing arc the valuation models which have been applied by the independent valuer:
{1y Discounted cash flow method, where net present value is determined based on projected cash flows discounted at an appropriate rate
(i)} Sales comparable method, which compares the price or price per unit area of similar properties being sold in the marketplace
l“urther, inputs used in the above valuation models are as under:
0] Property details comprising of total leasable area, arca actually leased, vacant area, parking slots ctc,
) Revenue assumptions comprising of market rent, market parking rent, rent growth rate, parking income growth rate, macket lease tenure, market escalations,
CAM income prevailing in the market etc .
(i) Cost assumptions comprising of brokerage cost, transaction cost on sale, cost ¢scalations ctc.
(iv)  Discounting assumptions comprsing of terminal cap rate, discount rate
() IEstimated cash flows from lease rentals, parking income, operaton and maintenance income etc. for the future years
(vii) Deemed cost of investment propeity {reptesents deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e. on April 1, 2015)
Description Gross block Accumulated depreciation |Net block
FFrechold land 2781779 27,817.79
Buildings 24,693.24 3,409.21 21,284.03
Plant and equipments 8,767.10 1,880.36 6,886.74
Total 61,278.13 5,289.57 55,988.56
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Non Current Current

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

5 Other financial assets

Deposits with onginal maturity more than 12 months* 1,318.84 1,403.60
Interest accrued on
- Fixed Deposit 1nn 695
- Others - - 4.40 347
Security deposits 6999 69.99 -
69.99 1,385.83 1,419.11 10.82
* pledged with debenture trustee (refer note 14)
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Deferred tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets arising on account of :
Brought forward losses * 2,233.43 2,900.63
l‘inancial assets measured at amortsed cost (0.06) (0.06)
Minimum alternate tax credic * 718.78 134.97
Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of :
Deduction claimed under section 24(b) of the Income tax Act, 1961 (1,27557) (1,254.72)
[Financial liability measured at amordsed cost (28.07) (23.88)
1,648.51 1,756.94

+ In accordance with IND AS- 12 "Income Taxes" notified under Section 133 of the Companics Act 2013, in view of the tax loss carried forward by the Company from the
previous years, the Company have a net deferred tax asset, primarily comprising of unabsorbed depreciation, MAT credit and carry forward of losses under tax laws. The
management is of the view that it is prudent to recognize the deferred rax assct to the extent it is reasonably certain that deferred tax asset can be realized on the basis of future

projections approved by the management. Accordingly, deferred tax assct has been recognized in the books

Movement in deferred tax assets

Particulars April 1, 2018 Recognised in profitand| Recognised in other March 31, 2019
loss comprehensive income
Assets
Investment property (1,254.72) (20.85) (1,275.57)
Unuscd tax losses 2900 63 (667 20) 2,233.43
Loans (0 06) (0.06)
Liabilides
Other financial liabilities (23.88) (19 (28.07)
Minimum alternate tax credit 134.97 583.81 - 718.78
Net 1,756.94 (108.43) - 1,648.51
Movement in deferred tax assets
Particulars April 1, 2017 Recognised in profitand| Recognised in other March 31, 2018
loss comprehensive income
Assets
Investment property (1,697.66) 442 .94 - (1,254.72)
Unused tax losses 4,451 42 (1,550.79) 2,900.63
Loans (0.06) - (0.06)
Investments (413) 413 -
Liabilities
Other financial liabilities (12.01) (11.87) - (23.88)
Minimum alternate tax creiit 26707 (132.10) 134.97
Net 3,004.63 (1,251.82) 4.13 1,756.94
Non Current
Non current tax assets (net) March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Advance income tax (net of provisions for rax) 1,475.29 1,561.52
1,875.29 1,561,52
Non Current Current
Other assets March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Advance to suppliers 3.99 59.52 5952
Capital Advances 36.31
Balance with government authorities 14.26 118.42
Prepaid expenses c 49.67 4586
3.99 36.31 123,45 223.80
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March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
9  Trade receivables
Related parties (refer note 40)
Sceured, considered good 100 45 234.23
Unsceured, considered good 99.60 130.61
Others
Secured, considered good 596.18 366.63
Unsecured
Considered good 170 32 82.57
Considered doubeful 16.69 16.69
983 24 830.73
Less : Mlowance for expected credit loss (16.69) (16.69)
966.55 814.04

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company cither severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or
other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or 2 member

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
10 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
In current account (refer note 10 1) 18.11 2228
In escrow account (refer note 10.2) 627 38 65579
645.49 678.07

10.1 Cheque issued from current account over and above the bank balance has been adjusted againsc auto sweep Fixed Deposit Receipes
10.2 T 627 38 lacs (March 31, 2018 - T 65579 lacs) representing deposits, held by the entity that are not avatlable for use by the Company, as these are pledged

with the banks to fulfill the collateral requirements of borrowings tken by the Company

10.3 Changes in financial liabilities arising from financing activities

Charged to Statement of

April 1, 2018 Cash flows Profit & Loss March 31, 2019
Non - Convertible Debenrures 36,878.25 - 45583 37,334.08
Loan from Related parties 6,566.00 (3,823.00) - 2,743.00
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 134.38 (4,087.49) 4,087.49 134,38
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 769.45 (842.16) 576.53 503.82
Total habilites from financing activites 44,348.08 (8,752.65) 5,119.85 40,715.28

Charged to Statement of

April 1, 2017 Cash flows Profit & Loss March 31, 2018

Non - Convernble Debentures 36,559 31 E 31804 36,878.25
Loan from Related partics 7,336.00 (770.00) : 6,566.00
Interest acerued  but not due on borrowimgs 13438 (4,087.5(0) 4,087 50 134.38
[nterest acerued and duce on borrowings 1,224.43 (1,309.92) 854 94 769.45
T'otal habtlities from financing activities 45,254.12 (6,167.42) 5,261.38 44,348.08

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
11 Other bank balances

Deposits with original maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months* 25062 71017
250.62 710.17

* Cheque issued from current account over and above the bank balance has been adjusted against auto sweep Fixed Deposit Receipts.
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March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Share capital No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity Share Capital
Authorised equity share capital
Lquity shares of ¥ 10 cach 65,21,500 65215 65,21,500 65215
65,21,500 652.15 65,21,500 652.15
Issued, subscribed and paid up
liquity shares of T 10 ¢cach 0a,21 500 065215 (65,21,500 652.15
65,21,500 652.15 65,21,500 652.15

Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

At the beginning of the year 65,21,500 65215 65,21,500 652.15
Issuced/(redeemed) during the year - =

Qutstanding at the end of the year 65,21,500 652.15 65,21,500 652.15

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

‘Ihe Company has only one class of cquity shares having a face value of T 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is cntitled to one vote per share In the event
of ligwdation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts The distnbudon will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shareholding in the Company

Name of the shareholder Macch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Equity Shares Number of % holding Number of shares % holding
shares

DI Cyber Cay Developers Limited, holdig company and its nominees 05.21,5t0 100 00% ¢ 65,21 500 100.00%a

As per the records of the company, the above sharcholding represents both legal and benelicial owacership of shares

The Company has not issued any equity shares issued pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully pad up by way of bonus

issues and brought back during the last five years

March 31, 2019 Maurch 31, 2018
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Prefrence Share Capital
Authorised preference share capital
12%0 non cumulative redeemable preference shares of 100 each 100 0.10 100 0.10
9% non cumulative redeemable preference shares of ¥ 100 each 4,000 4.00 4,000 4.00
4,100 4.10 4,100 4.10

Other equity

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Reserves and surplus

Sccurities Premium 1432375 14,323.75
Retained Earnings (6,719.64) (6,719.64)
Debenture redempuion reserve 3,422.96 1,052 48

11,027.07 8,656.59

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Securities premium reserve
Sccurities premium reserve represents premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act

Retained earnings
All the profits made by the Company are transferred to retained eamings from staternent of profic and loss

Debenture redemption reserve
‘e Company is required to create a debenture redemption redemption reserve out of the profits which are available for redemption of debentures.
Nebenture redemption reserve s created during the year to the extent of the availability of profits.

Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income represents balance anising on account of gain/(loss) booked on fair valuation of equity instrument,




DLF Promenade Limite '
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

(1)

(i)
(iv)
142

14.3

15

16

17

Non Current burrowings

Current hnrmwirl!-s

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Borrowings
Non converuble debentures (secured) (refer 14.1)* 37,334.08 36,878.25 & e
Loan from related party (unsecured)
Loan from DLIF Assets Private Limited (refer 14.2) - : 2,743.00 5,866.00
Loan from DLE Cyber City Developers Limited (refer 14.3) = ¥ 700.00
37,334.08 36,878.25 2,743.00 6,566.00
Less @ Disclosed unader other financial liabilities (refer note 18) (37,334.08) - £ -
- 36,878.25 2,743.00 6,566.00

* based on carly redemption date.
1" . » . . . . e
Repayment terms and security disclosure for the outstanding long-term borrowings (including current maturities):

Listed, Secured, Redeemable, 3,750 Non Convertible Debentures of ¥ 1,000,000 each referred above to the extent of :-

T 37,334 08 lacs ( March 31,2018 ¥ 36,878.24 laacs) are secured by way of first pari passu charge on the immovable property ie "DLE Promenade Mall” simated ac New

Delhi, owned by the Company: Coupon cate of these debentares s 10.910% and the final redemption date is December 11, 2021 and date of redemptior ((based on early
2

redempuon dare) is not caclier than June 11, 2019 The Company has subsequently excrcised 1ts tight o redeem all the Debentures on June 12, 2019, Pledge over the

sharcholding of the issuer company along with charge over debr service account 1 favour of debenture rustees
Charge on receivables pertaining to the aforesaid immovable property owned by the Company
Pledge over the sharcholding of Company

Iixed deposits pledged with debentuce trustees (refec note 5).

Loan outstanding amounting to ¥ 2,743 lacs (March 31, 2018 5,866 lacs) from related party is repayable on demand and carry interest @ 11.50 %o pa,

Loan outstanding amountng to ¥ Nil (March 31, 2018 T 700 lacs) from related party is repayable on demand and carry interest @ 11.50 % pa

Other financial liabilities
Sceunty deposit received from tenants

Capital creditors

Deferred revenue

At the beginming of the year
Defereed dunng the year
Released to the statement of profit and loss

At the end of the year

Current

Non-current

Trade payables

Total ourstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 31)

“Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Related Partics (vefer note 40)

Others

Other financial liabilities

Current maturitics of long term debt (Non convernible debentures) (refer note 143
Interest accrued and not due on borrowimgs (reler note 14)

Tnterest acerued and due on borrowings (cefer note 14 and H)

Sccurity deposit received from tenants

Other payable

Other current liabilities

Advance from customers (Contractual Liability)

Statutory dues payable

Non-Current

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

2,393.64 1,953.01
56.19 15.93
2,449.83 1,968.94

March 31, 2049

March 31, 2018

1,082.34 1,07249
6D8.72 498 24
(38747) (488.39)
1,393.59 1,082.34
310030 27012
1083.29 81222
1,393.59 1,082.34
Current
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
11.78 -
353.20 828.42
444.19 396.90
809.17 1,225.32

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

37.334.08
13438 13438
503 82 76945

1,384 71 1,611.25
551 551
39,362.50 2,520.59

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

37.70 92074
183.85 109.65
221.55 200.39
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Revenue from operations

Operating revenue
Rental income *
Revenue from contract with customers
Disaggregated revenue information
Service income
Parking income
Promotional income
Amount forfeited on propecties
Other operating revenue
Total r from cc with

* It includes T 301.00 lacs(March 31, 2018 * 400.46 lacs) income on account of financial liability measured at amaortised cost.
Other disclosures required under Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contracts with customers"

Timing of revenue recognition
Revenue recognised over period of dme

Revenue recognised at a point of time

Contract balances
‘I'rade receivable from contracts with cutomers (Maech 31, 2018 - T 324.93 lacs)
Contract assets

Contract liabibities

Trade receivables are generally on terms of 7 to 30 days. [nterest on delay in payments from customers (if any) is recognised as per the terms of contracts

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

10,338.04 10,030.79
3916.53 3,586.94
H733 +1.88
50530 418.68
0.68
[IRIY] 0.13
4,870.14 4,447.63
15,208.18 14,478.42
March 31, 2019
4,870.14
4,870.14
321.75
058

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from maintenance services and other operating income as receipt of consideration is conditional on successful provision

of services. L'pon completion of services, the amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to teade receivables

Contract liabihities include advances receved in respect of provision of maintenance services to the tenants

Significant changes in contract assets and contract liabilities during the year
Movement of contract liabilities

Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year

Amount received / adjusted against contract liabilities during the year

Revenue recognised from performance obligations satisfied in previous years
Amounts included in contract liabilities at the end of the year

Set out below is the of r gnised from:
Amounts included in contract liabilies at the beginming of the year

Performance obligations satisfied in previous years

R iling the of recognised in of profit and loss with the contracted price

Revenue as per contract price

Adjustment (if any)

Perfomance obligation

8249

(85.03)
312
058

March 31, 2019

312

+,870.14

4,870.14

“The performance obligation of the Company in case of maintenance services is satisfied over-time, using an input method to measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the
service, because the customer simultancously teceives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company. The Company raises invoices as per the teems of the contracts, upon

which the payment is due to be made by the tenants

As per the terms of the service contracts with the customers, the Company has right to consideration from customers in an amount that directly corresponds with the value to the
customers of the Company's performance obligation completed tll date. Accordingly, the Company has used the practical expedient under Ind AS 113 'Revenue from contracts

with customers’ and has disclosed information relating to performance obligations to the extent required under [nd AS 115

Other income
Interest income on
Bank deposits
[ncome tax refunds
Others
Unclaimed balances written back

Miscellancous income

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
164.10 171.85
- 184.14
+.90 +.30
040 229
51.35 614
220.75 368.72
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Finance costs
Interest expense on

Debentures

Loans from related parties

Iinancial hability measured at amortised cost
Guarantee and bank charges

Others

Depreciation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on investment propecty

Other expenses

Rates and taxes
Advertisement and publicity
Electricity, fuel and water

Repair and maintenance - building

Corporate Social Responsibility expense (refer note 38)

Repair and maintenance - others

Director's expense

Comnussion & brokerage

legal and professional fees

I‘acility maintenance expenses

IHeatng, ventlation and airconditioning
Payment ro auditors (refer note 24.1)

Business support charges

Provision for doubtful debts and advances

Loss on pre settlement of financial habiliy (Net)

Miscellancous expenses

Payment to auditor*

As auditor

Audit fees (including limited review)
T'ax audit fees

Other certifications

Out of pocket expenses

* exvlusive of applicable fuxes

Tax expense
Current Lax
Minimum altemnate tax credit entdement

Deferred tax charge

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

4,543 32 4,406.44
576 53 854 94
27618 35156

337 3.66

- 0.14

5,399.40 5,616.74
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

432 4.26

1,172.69 1,165.21

1,177.01 1,169.47
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

106.15 9227

580.94 557.38

1,560.20 1,367.81

186.05 157.40

34.30 7.00
23774 23885
598 6.79
9.29 131
6992 5320

2,039 84 2,081 49

69119 541.22

29.72 2236

12182 13630

16.69

10.44 8.15

0.51 2.05

5,684.09 5,M2.07

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

20.00 18.95
7.00 .

. 275

272 0.66

29.72 22.36

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

689.52 13439
(583.81)

69224 1,119.72
797.95 1,254.11

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of at 27.82% (March 31, 2018:

seported tax expenseon poofit or loss are as follows:

33.063% ) and the

Particulurs March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Accounting profit before income tax 3,168.43 (985.62)
At country’s statutory income tax race of 27.82% (March 31, 2018: 33.063%) (A) 881.46 (325.88)
Adjustments
I'ax impact of expenses which will never be allowed 2,014.52 3,651.81
Standard deduction under income from house property 134.18) (951.47)
Intecest expense allowed under secition 24(b) of Income Tax Act (1,199.93) (1,428.60)
Difference due to change in tax rate 34.88 (363.60)
Brought forward losses adjusted and lapsed 490.50 679.94
Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement (583.81)
Others (5.49) G
Total udjustment (B) — (83.51) 1,579.99
Income tax expenses recognised in the books (A+H) l/é;hE_N ,qn?\\ 791.95 1,254.11
X

Regd. Office:
Shopping Mall,
Phase-|
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26 Other comprehensive income March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Items that will not be reclassed to profit or loss
FFair valuation gain / (loss) on investment in equity instrument (17.83)
Income tax effect on above 4.13
- (13.70)
27  Earnings/(loss) per equity share March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Farnings attobutable to cquity shareholders 2,370.48 (2,239.73)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (in numbers) 65,21,500 65,21,500
Nominal value of equity share () 10.00 1000
laming per equity share (3)
-Basic 36.35 (3434
Diluted 36.35 (34.34)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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28 Fair value disclosures
i)  Fair values hierarchy

I‘inancial assets and financial liabilices measured at fair value in the statement of ftnancial position are grouped into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are

defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: quoted paces (unadjusted) in actve markets for financial inscuments

Level 2: 'I'he fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market 1s determined using valuaton techniques which maximise the use of observable

market data rely as little as possible on endty specific estimates

Level 3: If onc or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Fiair value of investment in equity shares have been determined based on discounted cash flow method (income approach)

(iii) Investment in Equity Shares

As at March 31, 2018

Disposal of investments

As at March 31, 2019

Gain/(loss) recognised in profit or loss

Gain/(loss) recognised in other comprehensive income

Gain/(loss) recognised in profit or loss

Particulars Amount

As at March 31, 2017 40.85

Disposal of investments (94.53)

Gain/(loss) recognised in other comprehensive income (17.83)
71.51

(iv) Financial instruments by category

March 31, 2019

March 314, 2018

Particulars Level Carrying value Amortised cost Level Carrying value Amortised cost
Financial assets

Sceurty deposit Level 3 69.99 69.99 |Lcvel 3 69.99 69.99
ixed deposit (non current) Tevel 3 level 3 1,318.84 1,318.84
Total 69.99 69.99 1,388.83 1,388.83
Financial liabilitics

Borrowings including interest Level 3 37,468 46 3746846 |1 cvel 3 37,012.63 37,012.63
Sceurdry deposit Level 3 3,778.35 3,778.35 |Level 3 3,564.26 3,564.26
Other financial liabilitics Level 3 56.19 5619 |1cvel 3 15.92 1592
Total 41,303.00 41,303.00 40,592.81 40,592.81

I'he management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables,other current financial assets, trade payables, borrowings and other current
financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturddes of these instruments: The fair value of the financial assets and liabilides is
included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following

methods and assumpuons were used to estmarte the e values,

- T'he faic values for sccurity deposits received were ealeulated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate They are classified as level 3 fair values in the

i value hicrarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit ask

29 Financial risk management

iy Financial instruments by category

Financial instruments, carrying value represents the best estimate of faic value

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Amortised cost

Amortised cost

Financial assets

‘I'rade receivables
Sccurity deposit

Cash and cash cquivalents
Other bank balances

Other liinancial assets
Total

Financial liabilities

‘I'rade payable

Secunny deposit

Orther financial liabilities
Total

Borrowings including interest

Q‘O R

£

Regd. Office:

966.55 814.04
69.99 69.99
645.49 678.07
250.62 710,17
1,419.11 1,329.66
3,351.76 3,601.93
+3,715.28 44,348.08
RO9 17 1,22532
3,778.35 3.564.26
6170 2144
45,364.50 49,159.10

Shapping Mall

A
m
o

Phase-i *
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ii)

A)

a)

b)

Risk Management
‘I'he Company’s activities expose it to market dsk, liquidity msk and ceedit dsk. The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Company's aisk management framework. This note cxplains the sources of dsk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the

related impact in the financial statements

Credit risk

Credit dsk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company. The Company's exposure to credit cisk is influenced mainly by cash and cash
cquivalents, trade receivables and financial assets measured at amortised cost. The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers & other counterparties and
incorporates this information into its credit risk controls.Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks
and diversifying bank deposits. Other financial assets measured at amortized cost includes loans and advances to employees, security deposits and others. Credit risk related
to these other financial assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously, while at the same time internal control system in place ensure the

amounts are within defined limits.

Credit risk management

Credit risk rating

“T'he Company assigns the following credit ratings to cach class of financial asscts based on the assumptons, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial asscts.
At Low eredit risk on financial reporting date

13: Moderate credit ask

C: igh credit nsk

T'he Company provides for expected credit loss based on the Following:

Asset group Basis of categorisation Provision for expenses credit loss
1ow credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances,|12 month expected credit loss/life time expected credit loss
trade reccivables and other financial assets
Moderate credit risk Other financial assets 12 month expected credit loss/life time expected credit loss
1ligh credit risk T'rade reccivables Life time expected credit loss

Based on business enviconment in which the Company operates, a default on a financial assct is considered when the counter party fails to make payments within the agreed
time period as per contract. Loss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual credit loss experience and considering differences between current and historical economic

conditions

Assets under credil sk —

Credit rating Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
A: Low credit risk Cash and cash cquivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables and other 3,351.76 3.601.93
financial asscts
13: Moderate credit risk Other financial assces
C: 1 ligh credit risk ‘I'rade receivables 16.69 16.69
Credit risk exposure
Provision for expected credit losses
T'he Company provides for expected credit loss based on lifeame expected credit loss mechanism for financial assets —
March 31, 2019
Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount net of provision
carrying amount at default losses
‘I'rade receivables 983.24 16.69 966.55
Cash and cash cquivalents 045.49 . 645.49
Other financial assets 1,489.10 . 1,489.10
Other bank balances 250.62 - 250.62
March 31, 2018
Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount net of provision
carrying amount at default losses
I'rade receivables 830.73 16.69 814.04
Cash and cash equivalents 678.07 - 678.07
Other financial asscts 1,399.65 . 1,399.65
Other bank balances 71017 - 710.17

In respect of trade receivables, the Company considers provision for lifetime expected credit loss. Given the nature of business operations, the Company’s trade receivables
has low credit Ask as the Company halds seeurity deposits equivalents ranging from three to sis months rentals. 1urther historical trends indicate any shortfall between such

deposits held by the Company and amounts due from customers have been negligble

I'he credit risk for cash deposits with banks and cash and cash cquivalents is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external
credit ratings. Also, no impairment loss has been recorded in respect of fixed deposits that are with recognized commercial banks and ace not past due. The carrying amounts

disclosed above are the Company’s maximum possible credit risk exposure in relation to these deposits

Other financial asscts being security deposits, investment and others are also duc from several counter partics and based on historcal information about defaults from the

counter parties, management considers the quality of such assets that ace not past duc to be good.
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B)

9]

2)

ii)

30

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity sk management implics maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securties and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed
facilitics

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows The Company takes inwo
account the liquidity of the macket in which the entity operates. [n additon, the Company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies
and considering the level of liquid asscts necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity rados against internal and external regulatory requirements and

maintaining debt financing plans

Matusities of financial liabilities

The tables below analysc the company’s financial liabilides into celevant maturity companying's based on their contractual maturides for all non-dedvative financial liabilides.

I'he amounss disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows Balances due within 12 months cqual their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is
8 2

not significant

March 31, 2019 Less than | vear 1-5 year More than 5 years Total
Non-derivatives

Borrowings including interest 41,687 50 41,687.50
‘I'rade payable 8917 - 809.17
Sceurity deposits 1,406.33 2,326.79 1,530.29 5,263.41
Other financial liabilies 56.19 - 56.19
Total 43,959.19 2,326.79 1,530.29 47,816.27
March 31, 2018 Less than 1 year 1-5 year More than 5 years Total
Non-derivatives

Borrowings including interest 11,557.33 40,478 84 52,036.17
"I'rade payable 1,225.32 1,225.32
Sccurity deposits 1,621.56 1,738.72 1,363.39 4,723.67
Other financial habilides 1593 15.93
Total 14,420.14 42,217.56 1,363.39 58,001.09
Market Risk

isk is the nsk that the fair value of future cash lows of a financial instrument will Quctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises nwo types of
interest rate risk and price nsk Financial mstruments affecied by market dsk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOCT investments and derivauve financial

mslruinents

Interest rate risk

Interest rate sk is the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. ‘Fhe Company's
exposurc to the dsk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily w the Company's long-term debrt obligations with floatng interest rates

Liabilides

“The Company has only fixed rate borrowings which are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither
the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates

Assets
‘T'he Company’s fixed deposits, interest bearing secunty deposits and loans are carried at fixed rate. Therefore not subject to interest rate dsk as defined in Ind AS 107, since

neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in marker interest rates

Capital management

Risk management

“I'he Company’s capital management objectives are to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern as well as to provide a balance between financial flexibility
and balance sheet efficiency. In determining its capital structure, the Company considers the robustness of future cash flows, potential funding requirements for growth

opportunitics and acquisitions, the cost of capital and case of access to funding sources

Management assesses the Company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an ¢fficient overall financing structure while avoiding excessive leverage. This takes into
account the subordination levels of the Company’s vadous classes of debt The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjusuments to itin the light of changes
in cconomic conditions and the nsk characteristics of the underlying assets In order 1o maintun or adjust the capial structure, the Company may adjust the amount of

dividends paid to sharcholders, return capiial to sharcholders, issue new shares, or sell assers to reduce debe

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

‘Total Borrowings including interest accrued 40,715.28 44,348.08

less : Cash and cash cquivalent (645 49) (678.07)

Net debt 40,069.79 43,670.01

Total equity 11,679.22 9,308.74

Net debt to equirty ratio 343.09% 469.13%




DLF Promenade Limited
Notes o (he financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All aniounss in T lacs, unless otherwise stated)

31

32

33

-
o

36

37

38

39

Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medwm Earerpnzes Development Aet, 2006 ('NISMED Aer, 217 is as under:

Particulars March 31, 2019 Mareh 31,2018
10 the pesncigil amount and the interest due thercon cemaining unpaid to any supplics s i tfie el of cach accounnng 1178 Nil

yude,

11 the amount of mterest pud by the buyer mterms of section 16, along wath the amounts of the pay ment made to the Nl Nul

supplivr beyond the appointed day duning each accounnng year:

i) the amount of interest due and payable for the perind of detay in making payment ivhich have been paid but Nil Nul
bevuind the appointed day during the year) but without adding the mrerest specified under s Aery

racerued and remaining unpaid ar the end of cach accounting year, and Nil Nil

1) the amount of inter

41 the amount of fnther mrerest remanmg due and payable even in the succeedig years, unnl such dare when il Nil Nil
AR

e dues as above are acrlly pad to the snall enterpose, for the purpuse of disalloswance as
ernpendimre under secnon 23

e shove informaton regarding Miceo, Small and Medium Fnterpnses has heen determimed to the exrent such paties have been Wdennfied on the basis of mlormanon available with the Company. The same has been
vehed upon by the auditors
Segment reporting

In line with the provisions of Ind AS 108 - operating segments and basis the review of uperations being done by the senior Management, the operations of the Company a1l under business of leasing of real estate activines
ce, 1t is considered operating in single geographical segment

Ihe Company vperates within India and does not have operanons in cconomic environments wirh different risks and retums Ter

CRISIL has 1effiemed 1es ranig on the commercial morggage backed scurities (“CMBS”) o CRISIL AN (SO)/(Snable) vide lerer March 6, 2019 and ICRA has also reaffirmed 1ts matng on CAIBS to ICRA AA (SO)
7Srable) vide lerter dated November 22, 2018

Contingent liabilities

Cluim against the company not acknowledged as debis
lPam’culars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
|Sur\'|cc tax demuand (for financial year 2007-12) 692.00 69200

Dunng the carlier years, the Compmy 1eceived an order from Commussioner of Service tax demanding service tax liabily amounring, to Rs Z.692.00 lacs fwhich constitutes service rax liability amounting to X 346,00 lacs
along with 100% penalry amounting 10 34600 lics) and mtecest thereon (Interese on lability may be determuned 4s and when the service tax hability 1s acrually finalized) on denial /recovery of Cenvar credit (being the
credit of service tax pad on consttuction services) utilized against out put service{ e Rental Income for financial Yea 2007-08 1) 2001-12). The Company had filed an appeal along wirh sty appliacnon with tespect to the
aforesad Commissioner of Senvice fax's order to lhigher authonry 1o Castoms, Lxase & Service Tax Appellare Tabunal (CESTAD). Durimg the year ended March 31, 2016, CEST A1 issued sray against the above sad

order and the marer 1s pencing for heanng ol the dare of sigming of fnancial srarements

Bascd on the discussions from mdependent fax exparts/devedapment on the appals, the manwement heheves tha ihe Company has o« good dhince of suceess i abov c-mentioned muarrer and hence, no provision was

considered necessan m chese Bl stigments

Guarantees
1here are no guicantees issued by Company on behalf of foan raken by orhers

In tesprct of hsred debn secmitics, the Company s maistaned F00Yw asser cover, suffiaent o dischage the panapal imouns seall nmes for the debt sccunines

I she apnuon of the boued of direcrors, anrent assets and other financal assets hice a value on realizanon w e ordinary course of business at least equal fo the amount at which they are stited i the Balince Sheer and

provisions ol all known labibines have also been made

Lisnmared amount of commutments on capital account as on March 31, 201 %45 T 2441 lacs (March 31, 2018 4284 Las)

In accordance with the provisions of sechon 135 of the Companices At 2013, the Board of Diccetors of the Company had constiruted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. In terms, with the provisions of
the said Act, the Company was tequired to spend a sum of T 34.30 lacs (Macch 31, 2018: T 700 laes) towards CSR activities duning the year ended March 31, 2019 The details of amount actually paid by the Company to Lal

Chand Public Chanrable Trust and Shice Mahavir )i Truse (March 31, 2018 :DLF Foundation) are:

Amount Paid Amount yet to be Paid Total
March 34, 2019 :
Donanon made for construcnion/ cquision of assets
Daonanon made for heatheare, envinonment sustamabihie 3430 .30
March 31, 2018 :
Donanon made for construchon/ acquisition of assets
Donarion made for cducation 7.00 7.00

During the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company has suld off then mvestments in cquury shaces, 3,250 shares of T 10 cach, of Gallena propern Management Services Private Liouted ar a sale price of 3 1 and accounted
for the bss of 20,32 Lus in s books. As on November 0, 2017, the Company has obraned the valuanon ceport from a fieny of churered accountants, which shows thar there 1s negative net worth of ‘\I/s‘ Gallena Park
567 Ls bang propornonate amount of loss 36.11% shar) o M/s DEF Tome Developer

Management Services Privare Tamated of A0455.01) hics. Accordingly. the Company paid - addimonal amount BT
Limited as mennoned i the share purchase agreement and teeogmed the loss of 2377399 Lus incduding bhss oot 032 hes on <l of s mycstment as exeeptional ilems n the saement of Profic & loss for the year

ended Macch 31, 2018

Farther, the Company sold off thewr investments n equiry shares, 230,000 shares of 10 each, of DLIF U tlinies Limuted (DU v sale prce of T41,10 per cquiry share on the basis of s fair valuanon report provided by

+ fim of charrered accountanss wiuch his resulted mnet proficof 27153 hes

\ceordingly, the Company accounted for the net loss uf’ 2 3,704 48 lacs (afrer nerting off the profic of 71,53 lacs on sale of shares of DUL) as exceptional irems i the starement of Profit & loss for the year ended Macch
31,2018

(This space has been mrantionally teft blank)
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Related party disclosures
In accordance with Ind A5-24 “Related Party Disclosures* of the Companies (Indian \ceounnng Stndard) Rules, 2015 (as amended from nme to ame ), the names of eclated parties ;l]()ng with aggregate amount of
transactions and year end batances wirh them are given as foliows:

40

Relationship:
i) Related parties where control exists
a) Ultimate holding company
DLF Limited (HIl December 23, 2017)

b) Holding Company

DL Cyber City Developers Limired (the holding company)

c) Entity having joint control over the holding company
DLF Limited (w.¢.F. December 26, 2017)
Reco Diamond Povate Limited. (w.c f. December 26, 2017)

d) Additional related party as per The Companies Act, 2013
Holding company of the entity having joint control over the Company's holdi

4 pany

Rajdhani Investments & Agencies Private Limited (ulimate holding Company w.e.f. March 12, 2018)

ii) Related parties with whom there were transactions during the year
a) Ulimate holding company
DLF Limited (6ll December 23, 2017)

b) Holding Company
DLF Cyber City Developers Limited (the holding company)

c) Entity having joint control over the holding company
DLF Limited (w ¢ . December 26, 2017)

d) Fellow subsidiary company
DLF Utilides Limited (6ll December 23, 2017)
DLF Power & Services Limited
DLF Emporio Restaurants Limited (ull December 25, 2017)
DLIF \sscts Prvare Limited
Richmond Park Property Management Services Limited
DLF Universal Limired (6ll December 25, 2017)

€) Subsidiary of entity having joint control over the holding company
DLF Empornit; Restaurants Limited (w.e F. December 26, 2017)
DLI Universal Limited (w e F. December 26, 2017)

f) Associate Company:
Gallena Property Management Services Private Limited (b1l December 25, 2017)

g) Enterprises under the control of Key ial p 1(KMP) of ulti holdi y or their relatives at any time during the year/ previous year

DLF Brands Limited (nll December 23, 2017)

Rod Retal Private Limited (6l December 25, 2017)

Kapo Retal Private Limited (till December 25, 2017)

Rhca Retail Private Limited (nll December 25, 2017)

Solange Retail Povate Limited (till December 25, 2017)

Juno Retail Private Limited (nll December 25, 2017)

Kiko Cosmetics Retail Pavare Limited (till December 23, 2017)
Cloteq Apparels Private Limited (all December 23, 2017)
Diana Retail Povate Limited (till December 25, 2017)

DLI Foundation (nill December 25, 2017)

h) Key managerial personnel(KMP) or enterprises under the control of KMP of entities having joint control over the holding company or their relatives at any time during the year/ previous year
DLIF Brands Limited (w.e.F. December 26, 2017)

Rod Retail Private Limited (w.e f. December 26, 2017)

Kapo Retail Private Limited (w.c.F. December 26, 2017)

Rhea Retul Prvate Limited (w.e.f. December 26, 2017)
Solange Retail Prvate Limited (w.e f. December 26, 2017}
Juno Retail Private Limited (w e F. December 26, 2017)

Kiko Cosmetics Retail Pavate Limited (w e F. December 26, 2017)
Cloteq App.ircls Prvate Limited (w.e f. December 26, 2017;
Diana Retadl Private Limited (w.e F. December 26, 2017)

DLF Foundation (w.e.f. December 26, 2017}

Lal Chand Public Charirable T'rust (w.e.f. December 26, 2017,
Shree Mahavir Ji Trust (w.c £ December 26, 2017)

Mr. Raj kumir Jun (Independent director,

Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg (Independent director)

Mr. Surinder Singh Chawls (Independent director)
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DLF Promenade Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amouyes in T lacs, uniess othenvise stated)

41

43

43

14

During the current year, the Company has charged the Common Area Maintenance (“CAM™) cevenug (included under the head “Revenue from Operations™) from tenants on provisional basis, based on management's
estimate of cost incurred. However, post the year-end, the Company will obtain an independent party certificate of acrual expenditure incureed towards maintenance charges for the year eaded March 31, 2019. The
management believes that no matenal adjusiments will arise in CAM revenue which will affect the current year financial statements,

Dudng the current year, debentuee redemption resenve has been created to the extent of the availability of profits and will be created in subsequent perods subject to the availability of profits.

I'he hsted Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company conuains 3,750 secured, rated, listed, redeemable non-convertible debentures of face value of T 10 lacs cach baving coupon rate of 10.90v, per annum payable on
monthly rests amountng 1 T 37,5000 [ acs {ceflected in lnd AS financial statements at T 37,334.08 Lacs) as at Macch 31, 2019 are secured by way of pari-passu chacge on the immovable property undee the project
“Peomenade” located at Vasant Kunj, New Pelhi, owned by the Company. s per the Debenture Lrust Deed dated May 15, 2014, the final cedemption date is December 11, 2021 and the daie of redemption (based on carly
redemption date) is not cadier than June 11, 2019. Subscquent to year end the Company has excrcised its right Lo cady redemption of all its outstanding 10.90% NCD of X 3750000 | acs {reflected i Ind AS financial
statements at T 32,334.08 Lacs) on June 12, 2019 by issuing catly redemption notice dated Apnl 18, 2019 to Axis | rustee Services Limited (Debenwre Trustee) I'he management is in advanced discussion with other lenders

 refinance the said loan and expect © meet its obligation to Debenture Holders as o falls due

Standards issued but not yet effective

Ihe amendments to standards that acc issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company's financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these sandacds, if applicable, when

they become effcctive

Ihe NMunsery of Corporate Aifars (NCA) hasissucd Compames (Indian Vecounung, Standards) Amcndment Rules, 2009 amcnding the follow g standard:

Ind AS 116- Leases
Ind AS 116 Leases was notificd on Maceh 30, 2019 and it replaces Tnd AS 17 eases, including appeachecs theran: Tnd AS 11615 etlective tor annual peaods begmning on oz afier \pal 1, 2019 Ind A8 116 sets out the
cts to account for all teases under a single n-balance sheet model similar to the accountng (or finance leases under Ind AS

prnciples for the recogninon, measucement, presentaton and dhsclosure ol leases and cequires les
17. The standard includes two recogmuon exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value” assets (e, personal computers) and short-term lases (e, leases with a lease eem of 12 months or less) At the commencement dare
of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (1.¢, the lease habiliry) and an asset represeuting the dght o use the underlying asset duang the lease term (ues, the rght-of-use asscet) Lessees will be
required o sepanately recognise the interest expense on the lease liabiliey and the depreciation expense on the nght-of-use asset

s will be also cequired w emeasure the laase liability upon the occurrence of certain events (¢.g, a change in the lease teem, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
¢ will genenlly recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the aght-of-use assct

X
derermine those payments) | he le

Ind AS 17 and distinguish benveen nvo types of leases: operating and finance leases \s per Ind AS 116, 2 lessor shall recognize lease
ning of lease escalations was not required in case the escalations were in line with the

| essoes will continue to classify all leases using the same classification pomaiple a
payments feom operating leases as mcome on ather a straight-line basis or another systematic basis unlike Ind AS 17, wheee straigh
expeeted genceal milaton and were compensating the lessor for expected inflationary cost

e ulumate impact on revenue resulong from the application of Ind AS 116 will be subject tu assessments that are dependent on teems of the conteactual arangements. The Company has established an implementation
wam to mplement Ind AS 116 related to the recognition of lease revenue and it continues to evaluate the changes to accounting system and processes, and additional disclosure requi that may be necessary. A
reliable esumate ot the ynantitative impact of Ind AS 116 on the financial statements will vnly be possible once the implementation project has been completed

Ihe figures of peevious year have been reclassified/ regrouped for better presentation in the financial statements and ro conform to the curcent veac's classifications/ disclosures. "This does not have any impact on the profits

and henee no change in the basic and diluted can

gs per share of previous year

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
DLF Promenade Limited

NN

For S.R. Bailiboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Aecountants
1AL Fiem's Registration No: 301003157 12300003

/
T Pushpatiector ;mdﬁanh.l Natu
I"armier Director Director Manager
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Giurpreet Manoj Kumar Dua
Chicf Financial Officer Company Sccretary
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